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VISION

Enhanced International
Confidence in Financial 

Reporting, Audit and 
Corporate Governance 

through Exceptional 
Technical Skills 
and Expertise. 

MISSION

To Protect Public Interest 
in Botswana through 

Oversight and Regulation 
by Developing, Promoting 

and Implementing 
Credible Financial 

Reporting.

CORE VALUES
PRINCIPLED

We act in an ethical, just and honest
manner at all times.

AGILITY
We provide service delivery with agility, innovation 

and technological approach.

KNOWLEDGE AND LEARNING
We maintain leadership in knowledge and 

understanding so as to advance quality and 
ethical standards in all aspects of reporting, 

audit and corporate governance.

INDEPENDENCE
We promote autonomy of the authority

and freedom of interference in the 
activities of the organisation.
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LEGISLATIVE MANDATE

• The Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority was established by the Financial Reporting  
 Act, 2010.

• An independent oversight body of the accounting and auditing profession in Botswana.

• To regulate the reporting of financial matters of public interest entities and the corporate   
 sector.

• Promote the standard, quality and credibility of providing financial and non- financial 
 information by entities.

• Regulate and promote the highest standards of auditors.

• Issue, adopt, establish, monitor, and enforce financial reporting, accounting and auditing  
 standards.

• Promote high standards of corporate governance and compliance with professional ethics.

• Protect public interest.

• Monitoring of Professional Accountancy Organisations. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Botswana

The principal objective of the Authority is to provide 
oversight to the accounting and auditing profession 
and promote the standard, quality and credibility of 
providing financial and non-financial information by 
entities.  Its functions include standard setting, 
financial/non-financial reporting, audit practice 
reviews, enforcement of compliance and oversight 
over the education and training of professional 
accountants in Botswana.

Michael Lesolle  - Chairperson
Thapelo Tsheole -Vice-Chairperson
Daniel N. Loeto
Emma A. Peloetletse
Keneilwe R. Morris- (Resigned Nov. 2018)
Lynette Armstrong
Mendel N. Nlanda
Oaitse M. Ramasedi 
Zoë A. Isaacs
 
Plot 54357, Varsha House, CBD 10th Floor
Gaborone, Botswana

Private Bag 0056
Gaborone

Deloitte & Touche 
Certified Audit Firm of Public Interest Entities

First National Bank of Botswana

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION AND 
DOMICILE

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL 
ACTIVITIES

DIRECTORS

BUSINESS ADDRESS

POSTAL ADDRESS

AUDITOR

BANKERS
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LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AAT  - Association of Accounting Technicians 
ACCA  - Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
AFIAAR  - African Forum of Independent Accounting and Auditing 
   Regulators 
BAOA  - Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority
BICA  - Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants
BSE  - Botswana Stock Exchange
CIMA  - Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
CPD  - Continuous Professional Development
EC  - Enforcement Committee
E&TC  - Education and Training Committee
ESAAG   East and Southern African Association of Accountants General 
FASB  - Financial Accounting Standards Board
FAC  - Finance and Audit Committee
FRA   - Financial Reporting Act, 2010
FRMC  - Financial Reporting Monitoring Committee
HRC  - Human Resources Committee
IASB  - International Accounting Standards Board
ICAEW  - Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
ICT  - Information Communications Technology
IFIAR  - International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators
IFRS  - International Financial Reporting Standards
IPSAS  - International Public Sector Accounting Standards
ISA  - International Standards on Auditing
ISQC  - International Standard on Quality Control 
MAFR    Mandatory Audit Firm Rotation 
MoU  - Memorandum of Understanding 
MFED  - Ministry of Finance and Economic Development
PAB  - Professional Accountancy Body
PAFA  - Pan African Federation of Accountants 
PEEPA  - Public Enterprises Evaluation and Privatisation Agency
PIE  - Public Interest Entity
REMS  - Risk Enterprise Management System
SAICA  - South African Institute of Chartered Accountants
SSC  - Standards Setting Committee
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

Honourable Minister of Finance & Economic Development;

It is my pleasure to present the Botswana Accountancy 
Oversight Authority’s (The Authority) Annual Report for the 
December 2018 reporting period.

Since its inception, almost ten years ago, following  the 
promulgation of Financial Reporting Act, 2010 which 
conferred upon the Authority its statutory mandate, it has 
become patently evident that the Authority has been able 
to consolidate its capability, deepen its competencies, not 
only as a regulator, but also widen its capacity to execute its 
mandate proficiently. In many ways the December 2018 
reporting period was a turning point as some key milestones 
were achieved during this period.

Guidelines for the rotation of auditors have been completed and are now operational. The 
Memorandum of Agreement between PEEPA and the Authority was concluded, and proposals for the 
amendment of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 were submitted.

The Authority has on its register, a core client base of  332 entities representing; 290 PIEs, 29 certified 
auditors, 10 audit firms and 3 PABs as at 31 December 2018 compared with 287 for the prior year; a 16%  
increase. 

For expediency, the Authority has delineated its core functions along the mainstream activity portfolios 
of audit practice review, financial reporting monitoring, and a unit dealing with compliance with 
corporate governance protocols, respectively. It is in these areas where the Authority exercised its 
statutory and regulatory oversight during the reporting period to ensure that the clients selected for 
assessment and evaluation  not only complied with the law, but also satisfied the Authority’s evaluation 
criteria.  

The Authority’s core purpose must be viewed in the first instance against the prism whose apex  
unequivocally elevates ‘corporate governance’ and the ‘public interest’ foremost as primary content 
in its spectrum of considerations. In this regard, the many facets of its deliverables filter into among 
others, transparency and accountability within the entire economic ecosystem. Importantly too, in its 
interaction with the key stakeholders and its clients, the Authority spent quality time during the year 
building public awareness covering the implications associated with a ‘clean’ economic environment 
devoid of corrupt practices and unethical corporate behaviour.

Admittedly, the reporting period under review was, however, characterised by a series of allegations 
attributed to profound corporate malpractice and irregularities which were collectively a significant 
cause for concern. There were linked to notable public interest entities and were compelling enough 
to raise the Authority’s manifest from simulator into a state of high alert. I can confirm, although 
disappointingly, that these manifestations were partly a spill over from the prior year, the Authority’s 
interventions were nevertheless robust and had high impact.

The widely reported Choppies Group revelations during the period left an indelible dent in the public’s 
assessment of corporate Botswana. More importantly, the reputational risk to the business confidence 
index and public interest exposure fell right on the doorstep of the public’s trust in the regulator’s 
responsiveness.  I can confirm that the Authority, along with other regulators did what was necessary to 
intervene.

For purposes of convergence, the Authority took it upon itself to collaborate  with other regulators such 
as Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants (BICA) and other agencies, to not only pre-empt 
corporate failures, but to be able to anticipate them, with the view to avoiding potential reputational 
 

MICHAEL LESOLLE
Chairperson
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

damage which corporate failures bring along. In the same way, the public will not expect any less from 
the Board of Directors of public interest entities and their Audit Committees. The Authority has 
commenced to explore opportunities for actively promoting high level collaborative platforms which  
regulators may consider for purposes of positioning the necessary inputs for reform, be it statutory or 
other reform initiatives  in an integrated fashion. 

Such platforms would provide datapoints which will enable all regulators to plug into propositions which 
generate a priority indicator index towards promoting Botswana as a destination for doing business, 
attractive to investors. The Authority’s Memorandum of Agreement with PEEPA, which was concluded 
during the period, adds to the list of other memoranda which go a long way towards the harmonisation 
of common compliance and other regulatory interests.

In order to secure investor confidence in the overall economic system, the stakeholders, including the 
public, must be assured of the necessary oversight instruments and regulatory protocols which function 
seamlessly. The Authority is well positioned to take the lead here. 

In its deliberations, the Authority’s Board of Directors brought into sharp focus those aspects of its 
regulatory frameworks which are targeted at the landscape improvement and the development of 
the financial and economic environments, particularly, as regards governance and compliance.

I acknowledge that over the same period, the findings pertaining to both audit practice  and 
engagement reviews conducted for some certified audit firms were less than adequate, and in some 
cases, downright below acceptable minimum standards, particularly for certified auditors of 
non-public interest entities. BAOA has already advocated for closing the gap and has advised BICA to 
actively monitor its members for purposes of compliance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS.) 

Regarding financial reporting monitoring and corporate governance reviews, the situation was 
similarly disappointing, particularly, with respect to state owned enterprises (SOEs) where poor results 
were consistently demonstrated. It is in the area of corporate governance where the SOEs quote their 
founding legislation as the underlying constraint which limit their ability to comply with best practice in 
corporate governance, such as those recommended by King III or King IV.

In a different but related context, the public would have witnessed some degree of dysfunction in 
certain parts of the economy particularly as regards allegations of corrupt practices and white collar 
crime. Put together, these are major threats to investor confidence and economic stability in the 
country overall. During the period, the Authority embarked upon further raising public awareness 
regarding the consequences of the breakdown in corporate governance protocols within the 
economy at large. It therefore became imperative for the Authority to do all in its power to impose 
compliance and enforcement targeted at the market as a whole.  Public interest entities and certified 
auditors are sampled on an ongoing basis to establish any deviation from the expected minimum 
standards.

I am satisfied that over and above the mainstream engagement  with PIEs and certified auditors, the 
Authority has forged strong strategic partnerships links with international and local agencies.  These 
partnerships make it possible for the Authority to tap into innovation channels, particularly in the area of 
cyber  and digital technology. It is the manner in which artificial intelligence algorithms  and data 
analytics impact upon the clients’ data in the ‘cloud’ which is of interest to the regulator. The ongoing 
dialogue with  auditing and accounting standards setters are part of a value chain which enhances 
the Authority’s representations to its stakeholders and its priority of protecting the public interest. 
      
It is a matter of strategic importance that the Authority deepens its review of statutory instruments 
established to support its mandate in order to submit appropriate recommendations for amendments 
to the law. In this regard, both the Accountants Act and the Financial Reporting Act are due for 
amendment.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Evidently, the Authority’s future programme of work will get more demanding as the market place and 
regulatory scrutiny intensifies. I am proud of the significant progress so far made by the Authority 
institutionally. I am confident that the public can entrust its faith in the Authority as the custodian of the 
public interest protection, and I look forward to the support of all the stakeholders in this regard.

GRATITUDE

It is my last term in office as the Authority’s Chairperson. I wish therefore to express my utmost gratitude 
to the Honourable Minister of Finance & Economic Development for his leadership and direction. The 
Authority owes its success to the undivided attention and support of the team in the  Ministry of Finance 
and Economic Development. 

I pay tribute to members of the Authority’s board, who are corporate leaders in their own right. They 
have discharged their duties professionally, and have contributed immensely to the growth and the 
good reputation of the Authority. To them I wish to express my 
gratitude.

The Secretariat staff and Executive management consists of competent men and women whose 
loyalty and commitment to the Authority is unfettered, enabling them to discharge their responsibilities 
with diligence. I therefore acknowledge their invaluable input and their continued contribution towards 
the growth and achievements of the Authority.

Michael Lesolle     
Board Chairperson
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2018

The suspension of Choppies Ltd from listing on the 
Botswana Stock Exchange (BSE) and on its secondary listing 
on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange (JSE); the scandal 
relating to ongoing judicial activity relating to the National 
Petroleum Fund (NPF); and high profile arrests, corruption, 
and tax evasion allegations by people in high positions 
were some of the events that attracted a lot of public
interest and the attention of the regulators, law 
enforcement and anti-corruption agencies in Botswana. 
These occurrences, undoubtedly, bring into question the 
efficacy of their control mechanisms to actually detect 
and prevent the scourge of financial crime. The issues at 
Choppies as communicated through the Botswana Stock 
Exchange circular are many and widespread in nature and 
cover non-compliance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), alleged questionable activities 
and transactions by some of those charged with 
governance and issues requiring intervention through a 
forensic investigation.

Questions could also be legitimately asked about the role of Directors, Accountants, Auditors and 
corporate governance in general in this regard. Regulators, therefore, need to research appropriate 
interventions to address these concerns. It is during times like these that regulatory cooperation by a 
cross-section of regulators in the different sectors of the economy become paramount and this is where 
relationships like the PEEPA/BAOA become even more relevant.

BAOA MANDATE

The Authority is now fully operational with all three major core functions in place and operating 
efficiently and effectively.  These core functions are audit practice review; financial reporting 
monitoring; and corporate governance.

The results of the reviews carried out during the period under review in the above core areas are 
detailed in the succeeding paragraphs under their respective sections.

AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEWS UNDERTAKEN IN 2018 

Nine (9) certified audit firms and their certified auditors were reviewed during 2018. One (1) of these was 
a certified audit firm of Public Interest Entities (PIEs), and eight (8) were certified audit firms of non-Public 
Interest Entities. (Non-PIEs).

Overall the quality of the firms’ system of quality control (firm reviews) have not improved in terms of 
average number of findings per audit firm. The average number of findings remained virtually static at 
five (5) findings for certified audit firms of PIEs and slightly decreased for certified audit firms of non-PIEs 
from seven (7) to six (6) findings. For the Engagement Reviews, the quality of the audits does not seem 
to be improving either. A clear distinction can, however, be noted for small audit firms which continue 
to record a high number of findings when compared to the “big four” audit firms.  Small audit firms find 
it difficult to resource their practices with adequately competent staff and robust engagement quality 
control structures to cope with the ever-changing International Standards on auditing (ISA) and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) landscape.

Due to the persistent poor performance of non-PIE auditors during the whole of the first three-year cycle 
and part of this new second cycle, the Authority has officially expressed its concern over these poor 
performances to the Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants (BICA), the jurisdiction under which 
they fall.

DUNCAN DANKIE MAJINDA
Chief Executive Officer
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REPORTING MONITORING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of financial reporting monitoring and corporate governance reviews, a trend is also forming 
where we generally see more poor results for state owned enterprises than for private and listed 
companies. The results are worse in the area of corporate governance where the entities quote their 
founding legislation as restricting their compliance with best practice in corporate governance, such as 
King III or King IV. We have to work with other regulators to influence policy change in this direction. In 
the area of financial reporting monitoring, we have advised BICA to caution its accountants to put their 
act together and ensure compliance with IFRS. We also commenced the process of reviewing the 
inspection methodologies of all three core functions of the Authority to align them with new 
international best practice and to also incorporate the principle of risk-based reviews.

MID-TERM STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW

During the year, a mid-term review of progress in the implementation of the Strategic Plan 2016-2020 
was conducted and the objective was to determine whether the Authority’s Vision and Mission were 
still relevant; review the continued relevance of the Authority’s initiatives; conduct a review of the 
current strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats and respond by taking appropriate 
interventions; and ensure that the appropriate infrastructure was put in place to produce the desired 
results.

It was concluded that the Strategy would impact all parts of the organisation including its business and 
operating model as well as the underlying processes, systems, organisational structure and people. 
BAOA will make deliberate efforts to ensure that these are continuously re-aligned to the Strategy 
through monitoring plans.

The summary of performance midway the Strategy period was as follows:

* 54% (12 out of 22) of the set targets were met;

* 18% of KPIs (4 out of 22) were slightly below target;

* 14% (3 out of 22) of the targets were not achieved; and

* 14% (3 out of 22) of the KPIs were not measured as they were scheduled for the second half of  
 the strategy period.

The review gave the Board and Management assurance that the Authority was on course to meet its 
strategic objectives by the end of the strategy period at the end of 2020.

BOARD EVALUATION

During the year under review, the Board conducted a Board Performance Evaluation process whose 
purpose was to assess the performance of the Board in the identified areas and make 
recommendations on areas of improvement. An independent consultant was engaged to provide 
independent facilitation services for the assessment. Independent facilitation is a critical component 
of this exercise as it provides objectivity to a board appraisal and enhances the credibility of the 
appraisal process.

The outcome of the Evaluation, which combined both the input from the individual members through 
questionnaires and the discussions held with them, indicated an overall Board performance score of 
76%. The report also indicated good performance in Finance and Audit Committee, Human Resource 
Committee and Board delegation and assurance.

However, greater focus is required on the relationship of the Board with Management, technology & 
systems and people & governance as these were areas that relatively attained low scores. Based on 
the Report, an action plan has been developed and adopted by the Board setting out corrective and 
improvement matters that arose from the Report.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

REVIEW OF THE BOARD CHARTER

The Board has in place a Board Charter to clarify its role and the role delegated to Management 
through the CEO in order to enhance its decision-making processes. The role of the Board Charter is to 
clearly outline the structure of the Board and to define its role, focusing on strategic leadership,
performance management, shareholder relations, risk management and governance. The Board 
Charter also outlines fiduciary duties of Directors according to Section 130 of the Companies Act and 
as recommended by King III

Section 21 of the BAOA Board Charter provides that the Board Charter shall be reviewed by the Board 
on a regular basis to ensure that it remains relevant to the business objectives of the BAOA. During the 
year under review the Board reviewed the Board Charter. A significant change in the revision of the 
Charter was the establishment of the Tender Committee as an independent Committee. Hitherto, the 
role of the Committee had been assigned to the Finance, Audit and Tender Committee. In view of the 
increasing need and importance of transparency and risks attached to tendering processes, the Board 
resolved to create a separate Tender Committee for this purpose.

SUPPORT SERVICES, HUMAN RESOURCES, ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT AND INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY

After completing the implementation of the core mandates of the Authority, the Board of the Authority 
shifted its focus to the development of the support services.  The Board established an Enterprise Risk 
Management Framework that laid out a sound and consistent approach to identifying and managing 
its risks. The Board also concentrated on the human side of the enterprise by resolving to approve a 
Talent Management Strategy that enhances human capital development through policies such as 
succession planning; attraction and retention; and promotion, recruitment and selection. 

The Authority has now assembled, without doubt, the best staff complement since its inception in terms 
of qualifications, skills, experience and expertise. In the area of Information Technology (IT), the Board 
performance evaluation recommended the enhancement of the IT infrastructure, particularly, in 
the area of business continuity. The Board has included all the objectives in the priority areas to be 
implemented before the end of its long-term Strategy in 2020.

LEGISLATION

The pace of legislative amendments of our Acts is very slow and consequently, results in the 
bottlenecking of the entire regulatory process. Without the legal enforcement capacity/ability, 
perpetrators go unpunished for long periods of time.  We are waiting for the amendments of the 
Accountants and Financial Reporting Acts which have been put in abeyance pending completion of 
the prioritised legislation.  Both BAOA and BICA are desperate to see the finalisation of Acts and their 
respective Regulations. Benchmarking experience on legislative enforcement, particularly in countries 
like South Africa, revealed that auditors are heavily sanctioned for performance related professional 
misconduct.

However, our law needs to be amended first to allow the relevant authorities to impose appropriate 
fines. We believe that once the legislation is amended to facilitate a more punitive approach to be 
adopted, since the developmental approach seems to have failed, improvements would be 
noticeable.

ROTATION OF AUDITORS

At long last, guidelines on the rotation of auditors have been completed and are now operational.  We 
believe that a new pair of eyes is always important as we have seen with the South African KPMG 
situation and currently here in Botswana with the Choppies issue.  The concerns raised at Choppies 
were discovered by the newly appointed auditors.  The overarching provision is that no firm should be 
allowed to remain in place for more than ten consecutive years.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

INTEGRATED REPORTING

Botswana represented by the CEO is one of the few countries that have adopted integrated thinking in 
corporate reporting in Africa. With respect to its own financial reporting, the Authority has established a 
working group chaired by the Finance Manager to start working on transitioning the Authority into 
integrated reporting with a view to adopting it in the 2020 financial statements. Botswana established 
an Intergrated Reporting Committee chaired by the Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants, with 
a purpose of encouraging the companies in Botswana to adopt Intergrated Reporting. The committee 
had during the year invited the World Bank Representative, Mr Patrick Kabuya to make presentations 
and to assess the level of adoption in Botswana. The adoption by the market is still slow in Botswana. 

GRATITUDE

My gratitude to my Board members for their contributions and guidance. Deserving special 
appreciation is Mr Ken Morris, who is one of the founding Board members of BAOA. He retired in 
November 2018.  Mr Morris was a pillar of strength throughout his tenure as a BAOA Board member.  
We wish him the best of luck in his future endeavours. 

Not forgetting the Government of Botswana through the Ministry of Finance and Economic 
Development for its financial support and the Secretariat for its tireless efforts in ensuring that the 
mandate of this Authority is achieved.

Duncan Dankie Majinda
Chief Executive Officer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Michael has for the past fifteen years or so, and until fairly recently, been the Executive Director of 
Botswana Accountancy College (BAC), a role he has discharged also as a member of the institution’s 
board of directors. A Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA), he 
has extensive experience in various aspects of business particularly in the financial services sector and 
the accountancy profession. The past twenty five years of his professional career were spent in the 
organisational leadership role at the apex. It entailed several facets of leadership, including that of 
organisational transformation, strategy formulation, human capital development, risk management as 
well as managing change. 

At its inception, Michael was one of the founding non-executive directors of Botswana Accountancy 
Oversight Authority (BAOA). He is also non-Executive director of a number of organisations including 
VPB, a private Equity Firm which he chairs, and an independent member of the BDC Finance & Audit 
Committee. His other key directorships in the past included his membership of the University of 
Botswana Council, and Non-Executive Director of Botswana Railways.

Michael was previously the Managing Director of Botswana Savings Bank and before that a senior 
Chartered Accountant with Deloitte – a firm of Chartered Accountants here in Botswana and in the 
United Kingdom.

He has contributed extensively in the accountancy profession both locally and internationally. At the 
Botswana Institute of Accountants (BIA), (now Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants,) where for 
many years he was Member of Council, and ultimately as President of the Institute, Michael served as 
a member of various committees of the Institute’s Council, including as a member and Chairman of the 
Education & Training Committee, SME and Public Sector Committees. His Chairmanship of the 
Disciplinary Committee had the highest content of the regulatory and institutional oversight, all of which 
will add value towards his contribution as Chairperson of the Authority. He was part of the team that 
was instrumental in the establishment of the new Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants’ 
professional qualification. Mike was an active member of the Botswana Institute of Bankers, and later 
the Institute’s President. He has previously undertaken a significant amount of Public Sector 
Consultancy work.

He spends a good deal of his time mentoring under-graduates and the Youth in interpersonal skills, life 
skills, ethical conduct, strategy development, leadership and into believing in themselves as they
cultivate the spirit of entrepreneurship.

Mr Lesolle is also a Member of the Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants.

MICHAEL LESOLLE
Chairperson
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Mr Tsheole is a seasoned Financial Markets expert 
with a cumulative experience of 15 years having 
worked for Bank of Botswana and Botswana 
Stock Exchange.

Mr Tsheole holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences 
(Single Major Economics) from the University of 
Botswana and a Master of Commerce (MComm) 
in Financial Markets from Rhodes University (RSA). 
Further, he holds a Masters in Business 
Administration (MBA) from the Graduate School 
of Business, University of Cape Town (RSA). He has 
also completed several financial markets 
programmes as well as a Leadership 
Development Programme at the University of 
Stellenbosch Business School (RSA).

Mr Tsheole has extensive financial markets 
experience in Capital Markets, Forex, Structured 
Products and the Financial Market Regulation. 
He was appointed CEO of the Botswana Stock 
Exchange (BSE) in January 2016 following a short 
stint as Deputy CEO at BSE since February 2014. 
His career at BSE began in February 2007 when 
he was appointed Product Development 
Manager.

Mr Tsheole is a firm believer in the development 
of the financial markets in Botswana and Africa, 
as well as their importance to economic growth 
and stability. It is against this backdrop that he 
has led initiatives to increase activity in the 
financial markets in Botswana.

Mr Tsheole is currently a member of the African 
Securities Exchanges Association (ASEA) 
Executive Committee and also sits on the 
following Boards; Medicines Regulatory Authority 
of Botswana, ACHAP Botswana and ACHAP 
International.
 

Zoë Angela Isaacs is currently the Director, 
Business Development Services at Business 
Botswana (BB). Ms Isaacs holds a Master of 
Science in Business Administration from the 
University of Illinois at Urbana Champaign and a 
Bachelor of Commerce from the University of 
Botswana. 

In her achievement box lays the introduction of 
the Labour Relations Symposium, an event which 
brings together practitioners in the labour industry 
to discuss evolving trends and share experiences, 
development of a business plan for setting up of 
a Regional Chamber of Commerce for the Selibe 
Phikwe Economic Development Unit (SPEDU).

Ms Isaacs has served in different Board 
Committees amongst them Member of the 
Human Resource Development Council (HRDC) 
Committee on Finance and Business 
Development, Member of the Human Resource 
Development (HRD) Fund Committee.

Ms Isaacs has held different positions from 
different industries. She started her career as 
Assistant Accounts Officer at the Botswana 
Building Society (BBS) from 1989 to 1990. Isaacs 
also served as Senior Project Officer from 1990 to 
1996 at Botswana Development Corporation 
(BDC).  After working for Caltex Oil Botswana 
from 1996 to 1998 as Commercial Sales 
Representative, she joined Peo Holdings (Pty) Ltd 
(renamed Peo Venture Capital) as Portfolio 
Manager. Prior to joining Business Botswana, 
Isaacs worked for Citizen Entrepreneurial 
Development Agency (CEDA) as Acting Deputy 
Chief Executive – Operations, responsible for the 
overall management for the activities of the 
organisation, providing broad strategic vision 
and leadership for the operations of Citizen 
Entrepreneurial Development Agency (CEDA). 
She also held different positions of 
Entrepreneurial Development Manager (Head of 
Department Training and Mentoring 
Department).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

THAPELO TSHEOLE  
Vice-Chairperson

ZOE ANGELA ISAACS
MEMBER
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Mr. Daniel N. Loeto is the Chief Financial Officer 
and Head of Finance Department of the Bank of 
Botswana. He is responsible for accounting, 
strategic planning and risk management. He holds 
a Bachelor of Science (Mathematics and Physics) 
Degree; Post Graduate Diploma in Education and 
a Master of Business Administration Degree, all 
from the University of Botswana.  He obtained the 
ACCA qualification in December 1997 and was 
admitted as a Fellow of the Association of the 
Chartered Certified Accountants in February 2005; 
and has been a Fellow of the Botswana Institute of 
Bankers since December 1998 after passing the 
Associate Diploma examinations in March 1993.

Mr. Loeto served as a member of the 
International Monetary Fund (IMF)’s three member 
External Audit Committee charged with the 
responsibility of the IMF’s external audit oversight 
for the period November 1, 2013 to October 31, 
2016; and served on the Board of Botswana Unified 
Revenue Service (BURS) from the organisation’s 
inception (June 2004) as the Bank’s representative 
to June 30, 2013. Mr. Loeto has also served as a 
member of the Botswana Institute of Bankers 
Council, and the Thornhill Primary School Council, 
and as an Employee Trustee of the Bank of 
Botswana Defined Contribution Pension Fund.

In terms of training, Mr. Loeto attended the 
Executive Development Programme of the 
University of Cape Town’s Graduate School of 
Business in July-August, 2005, Advanced 
Management Programme at Kellogg School of 
Management (October 2018) and has also 
attended several seminars, workshops and other 
short-term training courses at the Bank of England, 
Duetschbundes Bank and the European Central 
Bank, mainly related to accounting and central 
banking.  Before joining the Bank in August 1991, 
Mr. Loeto taught Mathematics to Advanced Level 
for about 5 years and has also been a part time 
lecturer at the Botswana Institute of Bankers for 
several years. 
  

Ms. Lynette Armstrong is the Chief Financial 
Officer of Debswana Diamond Company. As 
Debswana’s CFO, Lynette is responsible for the 
overall financial management of Debswana’s 
operations, including financial planning and 
reporting, balance sheet management, audit, 
tax, treasury and governance. As the Company’s 
principal interface with the Board Audit 
Committee, Lynette is charged with ensuring that 
Debswana’s financial disclosures and regulatory 
compliance are timely, transparent and efficient. 

Lynette has extensive financial experience with 
mining companies in Botswana. Previously, 
Lynette was the Financial Controller of 
Debswana responsible for managing budgets, 
planning and financial reporting. Lynette’s 
financial career took off in 2001, when she was 
appointed Chief Mine Accountant for BCL Mine. 
She later joined De Beers Prospecting Botswana 
as Business Manager. In 2006 she joined 
Debswana as Finance Manager for Orapa, 
Letlhakane and Damtshaa mines. 2009-2013, 
Lynette joined base metals and worked for Tati 
Nickel Mining Company and BCL Mine as Head 
of Finance. 

Lynette is a Chartered Certified Accountant 
(ACCA) and has completed the Accelerated 
Development Programme at the London 
Business School, as well as an Executive Personal 
Development Coaching Programme. Lynette 
serves on the Board of Trustees for Debswana 
Pension Fund and the Board of Morupule Coal 
Mine. Ms Armstrong is also a former board 
member of Bofinet. She is married with two 
children. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DANIEL N. LOETO
MEMBER

LYNETTE ARMSTRONG
MEMBER
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Mr. Keneilwe R. Morris is a career tax official who 
brings over 31 years experience in the customs 
and tax administration field. He rose through the 
ranks and has occupied various management 
and leadership positions in Government and the 
Botswana Unified Revenue Service. These include 
Director of Customs and Excise, Commissioner of 
Customs and Excise, and Commissioner General, 
BURS, a position he has occupied since 
December 2010. 

Mr. Morris is a member of various local, regional 
and international committees dealing with tax 
and customs policy formulation and 
administration matters. These include the 
membership to the Taxation Review Committee, 
the African Tax Administration Forum Governing 
Council, and the World Customs Organisation 
Policy Commission. Some of his personal 
achievements include coordinating and leading 
the team which established the Botswana Unified 
Revenue Service in 2004. 

Mr. Morris has attended several technical, 
management and strategic leadership training 
programmes locally and abroad. 
 

Mr. Mendel N. Nlanda is currently the Deputy 
Vice Chancellor, Finance and Administration at 
the University of Botswana (UB).  He is a Fellow 
Member of both the Botswana Institute of 
Chartered Accountants (BICA) and Association 
of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA).  He 
studied at Emile Wolf College in London and 
qualified as a Chartered Certified Accountant in 
1996. He also holds a Bachelor of Commerce 
degree from the University of Botswana obtained 
in 1985. He successfully completed a course on 
Strategic Financial Management in Higher 
Education offered by UNESCO/International 
Institute for Educational Planning (IIEP), Paris, 
France. 

Mr. Nlanda is an insightful and highly experienced 
Accountant and Administrator. He spent a year 
on sabbatical at the University of Pennsylvania, 
USA (1July, 2008 – 30 June 2009) to gain hands-on 
experience on the international scene and at a 
world class university. Apart from Finance 
Directorship at UB, Mr. Nlanda is also the Principal 
Officer of the UB Pension Fund, the third largest 
pension fund by value in the country, the 
treasurer of the UB Foundation and Deputy 
Chairman of the UB Tender Committee. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

KENEILWE R. MORRIS
MEMBER (Resigned Nov 2018)

MENDEL N. NLANDA
MEMBER

Page 15 0f 117



Mrs. Emma A. Peloetletse is the Accountant 
General of the Republic of Botswana, a position 
she was appointed to in 2009 having served in 
the Ministry of Finance and Economic 
Development from 1990. She holds a Bachelor of 
Commerce from the University of Botswana; 
post-graduate diploma in Public Finance and ICT 
from the National Institute of Financial 
Management in India and has attained the 
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants 
(ACCA- Level 1). Mrs. Peloetletse has a sound 
background and experience in strategic 
management and public-sector governance 
issues acquired from the more than two 
decades of service in the Government of 
Botswana at various levels.

Mrs. Peloetletse has participated in several high 
level regional and international conferences 
representing the Government of Botswana and 
has served on several boards. She is currently a 
member of the Botswana Public Officers Pension 
Fund (BPOPF) Board, and the Botswana 
Accountancy College (BAC) Board.  She is a 
member of the East and Southern African 
Association of Accountants General (ESAAG) 
Technical Committee.

She’s a member of the Botswana Institute of  
Chartered Accountants (BICA) and the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy (CIPFA). 

Mrs. Peloetletse is outspoken and upholds a high 
level of professionalism.
  

Mr. Oaitse M. Ramasedi is currently the Chief 
Executive Officer of the Non-Bank Financial 
Institutions Regulatory Authority (NBFIRA). Prior to 
that, he was the Chief Executive Officer of the 
National Development Bank (NDB), and prior to 
that, he served in various senior management 
capacities in both accounting/finance and 
internal auditing functions in government, 
parastatal and private sector, respectively.

Mr Ramasedi is a Chartered Global 
Management Accountant (CGMA) as well as 
being a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute 
of Management Accountants (FCMA); Botswana 
Institute of Chartered Accountant (FCA); and the 
Insurance Institute of South Africa (FIISA); 
respectively. He is also an Associate Member of 
the Botswana Institute of Bankers (ABIB).

Aside of the above, Mr Ramasedi successfully 
completed the Advanced Programme in Risk 
Management with the College for Business 
Management, University of South Africa (CBM 
UNISA).

Mr Ramasedi has served in a number of 
organisations as a Board Member. He is currently 
in the Executive Committee of the International 
Organisation of Pensions Supervisors (IOPS) and 
that of the Botswana Retired Nurses Society  
(BORNUS). 

Mr Ramasedi previously chaired the SADC 
Committee on Insurance Securities and 
Non-bank Authorities (SADC CISNA), Botswana 
Institute of Bankers, SADC Development Fund 
Resource Centre (SADC dfrc), Botswana Housing 
Corporation Finance and Audit Committee (BHC 
FAC), amongst others.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EMMA A. PELOETLETSE
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MEMBER
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF BAOA

Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority (the Authority) is an independent oversight body of the 
accounting and auditing profession constituted in terms of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 (the Act). 
The Authority falls under the Ministry of Finance and Economic Development and the two entities have 
signed a Shareholder Compact which is part of a Government initiative to improve the performance of 
the public enterprises in Botswana. During the year under review, both the Authority and the 
Government fulfilled their performance obligations as stipulated in the Shareholder Compact. 

GOVERNING STRUCTURE

The functions and powers of the Authority are exercised by a Board of Directors consisting of nine 
members, six of whom represent the key stakeholders of the Authority, two experienced professional 
accountants and one academic profession accountant. The Authority has adopted King III as its Code 
of corporate governance and except for instances where there is a conflict between the founding 
legislation and the Code, the Authority endeavours to comply as much as possible. In the interest of 
good practice in corporate governance, it is hoped that the Authority and other relevant regulators will 
work together to influence policy change so that the legislation could be accordingly aligned. 

The Board recognizes that good governance is ultimately about good decision-making, which is 
dependent on transparency and the availability of accurate information, particularly as it pertains to 
the Authority’s mandate of protection of Public Interest and the quality of its relationships with all
Stakeholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board boasts of a balance of skills, expertise and relevant experience ranging from the business 
sector, strategy formulation, accounting, auditing, finance and regulators to experts from both the 
private sector and academia, who are all independent of the auditing profession.

The Table below shows the appointment details of Board Members:
 

Name Position Date of 
App ointment 

Term 
 

Mr. Michael Leso lle Chairperson 1st October 2018 
(re-app ointment) 

2 year 

Mr. Michael Leso lle Member(expert) 1st October 2015 
(re-app ointment) 

4 years  
 (last term) 

Mr. Thap elo Tsheole Vice-Chairperson 25th August 2018 
(re-app ointment) 

2 years 

Mr. Thap elo Tsheole Member (ex-o ff icio) 1st Ja nuary 2016 Term of o ff ice 

Ms. Lynett e Armstrong Member (expert) 1st October 2015 4 years 
Mr. Daniel N . Loeto Member (ex-o ff icio) 1st November 2011      Term of o ff ice 
Mr. Kene ilwe R. Mo rris Member (ex-o ff icio) 1st November 2011 Resigned 

Nov . 2018 
Mr. Mendel N . Nlanda Member (ac ad emic) 1st October 2015 4 years 

 (last term) 
Ms. Emm a A. 
Peloe tletse 

Member (ex-o ff icio) 1st November 2011 Term of o ff ice 

Mr. Oaitse M . Ramasedi Member (ex-o ff icio) 1st November 2011 Term of o ff ice 

Ms. Zoe A . Issacs Member (ex-o ff icio) 31st October 2017 Term of o ff ice 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED) 

The ex-officio Board Members comprise Heads of the following organisations:

• Accountant General’s Office;
• Bank of Botswana;
• Business Botswana;
• Botswana Stock Exchange;
• Botswana Unified Revenue Service; and
• Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority.

During the year under review the Board operated with its full complement.

RESIGNATION FROM THE BOARD

In accordance with Section 10 (5) of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010, a member of the Board may 
resign from office by giving 30 days’ notice in writing to the Chairperson. During the year under review, 
Mr. Keneilwe R. Morris retired from Botswana Unified Revenue Service and consequently ceased to be 
an ex-officio Board member effective 28th November 2018.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The responsibilities of the Board are set out in the Board Charter, and they include, amongst others, the 
following:

• Formulating, reviewing and monitoring implementation of the Authority’s Strategic Plan;
• Approval of the Authority’s business plan and budget;
• Identification and management of the Authority’s risks;
• Ensuring compliance with legal and ethical standards by the Authority;
• Strategic direction of the Authority and ensuring compliance with good corporate governance;  
 and
• Setting of values which the Authority should adhere to.

The Board has a fiduciary duty to discharge its responsibilities collectively and individually; and may 
delegate to any of its Committees, any of its functions as it considers necessary, in accordance with 
Section 16 of the Act. Each Committee operates within the sphere of its Terms of Reference/Charter 
approved by the Board.

MAJOR PROJECTS AND ACTIVITIES PERFORMED BY THE BOARD DURING THE YEAR.

• Preparation of various reports on Audit Practice Reviews, Corporate Governance and Financial  
 Reporting Monitoring;
• Mid-Term Strategy Review of Strategic Plan 2016 – 2020;
• Implementation of the Succession Plan; 
• Implementation of the Talent Management Strategy;
• Revision of the Board Charter and establishment of the Tender Committee;
• Preparation of GAAP in Botswana for Entities not required to comply with IFRS;
• Preparation of the Revenue Recognition Policy;
• Implementation of the Enterprise Risk Management Strategy and Policy;
• Revision of the BAOA Rules;
• Review of the Financial Reporting (Public Interest Entities) Regulations, 2016; and
• Establishment of two subcommittees under the Standard Setting Committee to facilitate   
 responses to Exposure Drafts requested by Global Standards Setting Bodies. 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

BOARD SECRETARY

• The Secretary of the Board of the Authority, a legal practitioner, meets the qualifications as 
 stipulated in the Companies Act CAP 42:01, Section 162. He combines the role of a legal   
 advisor and Secretary of the Board. He reports functionally to the Board and administratively  
 to the Chief Executive Officer.

• The Secretary position has wide-ranging responsibilities, requiring much more than simply being  
 present at all board meetings.  As the custodian of the organization's records, the Secretary is  
 responsible for maintaining accurate documentation and meeting any legal requirements and  
 guiding individual Directors in areas such as corporate governance, updates on legal and  
 statutory amendments and the effective execution of Directors responsibilities and fiduciary  
 duties. 

• The duties of the Board Secretary which are in compliance with King III Code on Corporate  
 Governance Principles and Section 163 of the Companies Act, include, amongst other things,  
 the following:

 • Assisting with the selection and recommendation of non ex-officio members of the  
  Board of Directors;
 • Ensuring Board and Committee Charters are kept up to date;
 • Preparing and circulating Board papers;
 • Assisting in drawing yearly Board and Committee schedules of meetings; 
 • Ensuring preparation and circulation of minutes to Board members; and 
 • Keeping Minutes and Records.

BOARD CHARTER

The Board has put in place a Board Charter to clarify roles and to enhance its decision making 
processes. The role of the Board Charter is to clearly outline the structure of the Board and to define its 
role, focusing on strategic leadership, performance management, shareholder relations, risk 
management and governance. The Board Charter also outlines fiduciary duties of Directors according 
to Section 130 of the Companies Act and as recommended by King III code of Corporate Governance.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed the Board Charter pursuant to Section 21 of the 
BAOA Board Charter which provides that, the Board Charter shall be reviewed by the Board on a 
regular basis to ensure that it remains relevant to the business objectives of the Authority. A significant 
change in the revision of the Charter was the establishment of the Tender Committee.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly as prescribed by the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 and the Board Charter. 
The meetings are facilitated by the Board Secretary and are scheduled for the financial year in 
advance. However, special meetings may be convened at the request of the Chairperson or any 
independent non-executive director, when necessary. Timely, relevant and accurate information is 
provided to the Board. The minutes of the Board are circulated for comment and accordingly 
approved in subsequent meetings.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

 
A summary of Board meetings held and the attendance of Members at the Board meetings during 
the year 2018 is shown in the table below:

No           Board Member        Effective Date  29 Mar     28 June    11 Oct     11 Dec        Total
            of Appointment      2018          2018         2018        2018
1. Mr. Michael Lesolle  Oct. 2015                                                            4/4
2. Mr. Thapelo Tsheole   Aug. 2016                        A               3/4
3. Mr. Daniel N. Loeto  Nov. 2011                                        4/4
4. Ms. Emma A. Peloetletse Nov. 2011                                         4/4
5. Mr. Keneilwe R. Morris  Nov. 2011     A         A                   N-A        1/4
6. Ms. Lynette Armstrong  Oct. 2015                         A               3/4
7. Mr. Mendel N. Nlanda  Oct. 2015                   A                               3/4    
8. Mr. Oaitse M. Ramasedi Nov. 2011                         A      A        2/4
9. Ms Zoe A. Isaacs  Oct. 2017                                                 4/4

 Key: -       Present    A-Apologies
    N-A No longer a member

REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In accordance with Section 13 of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010, members of the Board are paid 
out of the funds of the Authority, such remuneration and allowance with the approval of the Minister 
of Finance and Economic Development.

N.B. Board fees for the Accountant General, Ms. Emma Peloetletse were paid to the Government of 
the Republic of Botswana.

Members Board Finance   Audit        Financial    Human     Standard   Education   Total Sitting   
      And     Practice    Reporting  Resource    Setting         And           Fees Paid
     Audit                Training (Pula)
 Mr. Michael 
 Lesolle   4/4                                                          9,000 

 Mr. Daniel 
 Loeto   4/4    4/4        3/3                                                    19,800 
 Mr. Thapelo 
 Tsheole  3/4                 2/3        3/4              2/3                   18,000 

 Mr. Oaitse 
 Ramasedi  2/4    4/4        3/3                 3/3                                    21,600 
 Mr. Mendel 
 Nlanda     3/4          3/3                  1/3        3/3                 18,000
 Mr. Keneilwe 
 Morris   2/4                           4/4                                 10,800 

 Ms. Zoe 
 Isaacs   4/4                           3/4                       2/3      16,200 
 Ms. Lynette  
 Armstrong  3/4                    3/3                3/4                  16,200 
 Ms. Emma 
 Peloetletse  4/4    3/4                                         3/3               18,000
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

QUORUM

In accordance with Section 15 (4) of the Act, the quorum at every Board meeting shall be five (5) 
Members, of which at least three (3) shall be ex-officio Members and one is an expert Member. Dates 
of quarterly meetings are scheduled annually in advance and any additional meetings are called as 
and when the need arises.  The Authority keeps an attendance register signed by all members and 
staff in attendance at all Board meetings.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Board members are required in terms of the Act, Board Charter, and King III Code on Corporate 
Governance Principles, to disclose to the Board, perceived or possible conflicts of interest, annually in 
case of directorships in other entities. In the case of potential conflict of interest arising from matters on 
the agenda, a member discloses the conflict and recuses themselves when the item is being discussed. 
During the year under review the members made full disclosures in accordance with the Annual 
Declaration of Interest Policy.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Section 16 (1) of the Act stipulates that the Board of the Authority may, for the purposes of performing 
its functions, establish such committees as it considers appropriate; and may delegate, to any such 
committee, any of its functions as it considers necessary. Pursuant to this provision, the Board has 
established Statutory and Non-Statutory Committees and subcommittees of the Board. Each 
committee operates within the ambit of its defined Terms of Reference, approved by the Board, that 
set out its composition, role and responsibilities, delegated authority and meeting requirements of 
each committee. 

STATUTORY AND NON-STATUTORY

Statutory Committees 
a) Standards Setting Committee (SSC);
b) Financial Reporting Monitoring Committee (FRMC);
c) Audit Practice Review Committee (APRC);
d) Enforcement Committee (EC); and
e) Education and Training Committee (E&TC).

Non-Statutory Committees 
a) Finance and Audit Committee (FAC); 
b) Human Resources Committee (HRC); and
c) Tender Committee (TC).

BOARD EVALUATION

The BAOA Charter requires an annual appraisal of the effectiveness of the Board of Directors. Section 
20 of the BAOA Charter states that the evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Board 
members, including the Chairperson, must be performed on a regular basis in accordance with 
evaluation systems as decided by the Board from time to time.

The Charter, at Section 7 (p) and (q), states that the Board shall recommend appointment, evaluation 
performance of CEO and set performance targets for the CEO.

The objective of the evaluation is to improve the effectiveness of the Board and the quality of 
corporate governance and the operational performance of BAOA. Recommendations for 
improvement are therefore an essential part of this review.

Page 21 0f 117



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review an independent Board Performance Evaluation process was undertaken. 
The results which were approved by the Board indicated an overall Board performance score of 76%. 
Based on the report an action plan has been developed and adopted by the Board setting out 
corrective and improvement matters that arose from the report. The key items that needed 
improvement highlighted by the Evaluation included improving the relationship between the Board 
with management in terms of continuously apprising the Board of what is happening in the Authority, 
technology & systems and people and governance.

MANAGEMENT OF THE AUTHORITY

Section 20 of the Act provides for the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) by the Minister 
of Finance and Economic Development on recommendation by the Board. The CEO, subject to such 
directions on matters of policy as may be given by the Board, is responsible for the day to day 
management of the affairs of the Authority. He is assisted by senior staff appointed by the Board on 
his recommendation. The Authority ended the year with a very strong staff complement in terms of 
the required skills and expertise with the right balance of core staff in terms of the major mandate of 
the Authority and the support staff. This is perhaps the best team assembled since the inception of the 
Authority.

In terms of guidance as to what the CEO can do, the Board, through its Charter, clearly laid down what 
can be delegated to him. The Board also approved an Authorisation Matrix clearly outlining the 
demarcation of what can be authorised by the Board and the CEO to remove any ambiguity which 
might arise.

STRATEGIC PLAN 2016-2020

During the year under review, a mid-term review of the progress in the implementation of the Strategic 
Plan 2016-2020 was conducted and the objective was to:

• Determine whether the Authority’s Vision and Mission were still relevant;
• Review the continued relevance of the Authority’s initiatives;
• Conduct a review of the current strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats and respond  
 by taking appropriate interventions;
• Ensure that the appropriate infrastructure was put in place to produce the desired results. 

It was concluded that the strategy would impact all parts of the organisation including its business and 
operating model as well as the underlying processes, systems, organisational structure and people. 
BAOA will make deliberate efforts to ensure that these are continuously re-aligned to the strategy 
through monitoring plans.

The Strategy Map and Scorecard Dashboard below summarise the assessed performance for the first 
two years of the strategy period as per the approved indicators.
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The summary of performance midway through the strategy period was as follows:
• 54% (12 out of 22) of the set targets were met;
• 18% of KPIs (4 out of 22) were slightly below target;
• 14% (3 out of 22) of the targets were not achieved; and
• 14% (3 out of 22) of the KPIs were not measured as they were scheduled for the second half of  
 the strategy period.

During the strategy review session, a Strategy Projects Portfolio and new Strategy Initiatives Timeline 
were established. 

The revised strategic objectives were:

• Establish partnerships with HRDC, BQA and PEEPA; 
• Roll out the Customer Satisfaction Survey;
• Develop an Annual Monitoring Plan  including survey tools etc (monitoring for implementation of  
 the strategy);
• Improve and map Internal Business Processes  where appropriate; 
• Review and implement the IT Strategy;
• Optimise new services in operation, and improve services already in operation, namely; 
 Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Monitoring;  

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

REVISED STRATEGY OBJECTIVES
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

• Develop inter-departmental service standards;
• Implement integrated reporting; 
• Roll out engagement survey;
• Develop strategy aligned Training Plans; 
• Develop a Talent Management  strategy including succession planning and HPO;
• Review the Authority’s Revenue Structure; and
• Preparation of BAOA Funding Plan.

The revised time lines for the Authority during the second half of the strategy period were as follows:

  
 Strategy Manager: P. Jansen   STRATEGY INITIATIVES TIMELINE
 Strategy Customer: D. Majinda 
 Strategy Sponsor: M. Lesolle 

  When    2018       2019            2020

                Q3    Q4      Q1      Q2     Q3      Q4     Q1      Q2      Q3      Q4

  #   Initiative   
  1 Performance Audit- Section 68 

 of the Act                    

  2 Stakeholder Satisfaction Index 

 (SSI)                    

  3 Stakeholder Awareness                    

  4 Improve Operational Excellence 

 Process mapping                    

  5 Talent Development (Training 

 Plan)                    

  6 Employee Engagement(survey)                 

  7 Board Performance Assessment                 

  8 Launch Registration Portal                   

  9 Integrated Reporting                    

  10 Establish MoU with other 

 regulators                    

  11 Develop Risk Based Criteria for 

 Reviews                    

  12 Audit Practice Reviews                   

  13 Financial Statements Monitoring 

 Reviews               

  14 Corporate Governance Reviews   

RISK MANAGEMENT
 
The Authority has in place a robust Risk Management Policy which provides guidance for:
 • Governance and oversight for independent assurance of risk, controls, roles and 
  responsibilities for risk management;
 • The risk management process and allows for a consistent approach to risk identification, 
  assessment and control of risks; and
 • Embedding risk management into the organisation.

Through this framework, the Authority identified 11 main risk categories. The main risk categories have 
been defined as principal risks that are each managed according to the Risk Management Policy. A 
plan of action for each risk category has been developed and is monitored on a monthly basis for 
progress.
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Action plans are prioritized based on their risk levels and exposure which are managed within the 
appetite and exposure tolerance as set by the Board. The Manager, Information Technology, is 
responsible for the implementation and effectiveness of the risk management processes. In conjunction 
with the Authority’s Management, the Risk Manager communicates the risks identified for each business 
unit and ensures the action plans emanating from the risk assessment exercise are followed up.

CODE OF ETHICS CONDUCT

As part of its corporate governance practice and to encourage an environment where honesty, 
integrity, trust and consistency prevails, all employees are required to abide by the Authority’s code of 
ethics. This code of conduct is also extended to the Authority’s Stakeholders.

The Board promotes principles of good governance and adopts King Code (King III). The Authority 
strives to align itself to good corporate governance practices and effectively refers to the newly 
constituted King IV which also underpins the importance of ethical and effective leadership which 
promotes ethical culture.

In the quest for ensuring ethics standards awareness, employees are required to sign an 
acknowledgement stipulating not only that they have read and understood the Code, but also that 
they have neither breached nor are aware of any breach of the Code’s provisions.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Authority does not have its own dedicated internal audit function as the size of the Authority does 
not warrant an independent internal audit function at this stage. However, in the interim, the Technical 
Department continues to carry out reviews of internal controls and related functions to provide 
independent advisory and assurance services to the Authority until it is determined that the Authority 
has grown in size to necessitate the establishment of the function.

During the year, the Technical Department carried out a compressive review of the Authority’s 
operations, financial reporting and corporate governance environment and the report was sent to 
the Chairperson of the Finance and Audit Committee. The results on financial reporting compliance 
and corporate governance were considered satisfactory. However, recommendations in the area of 
operations were made and are being implemented.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Authority prepares for each financial year, Financial Statements consisting of Statement of Financial 
Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Reserves and Statement of 
Cash Flows in accordance with Section 66 of the Act. The external auditors conduct the Authority’s 
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and their audit plan. The external 
auditors provide an independent assessment of the Authority’s internal financial controls put in place 
by the Board of Directors and form an opinion on the annual financial statements of the Authority. The 
audited financials are reviewed by the FAC and presented to the Board for approval.

The Authority is a Public Interest Entity (PIE), therefore, it ought to be audited by a PIE Auditor. Our 
auditors, Deloitte & Touche are a PIE auditor in good standing and have satisfied the requirement of 
the Authority’s audit practice reviews.

RENEWAL OF REGISTRATION OF CERTIFIED AUDITORS AND AUDIT FIRMS OF PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITY (PIE)

In accordance with Section 27 of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010, a person or firm who or which 
wishes to renew registration shall, not later than three (3) months before the expiration of registration, 
make a written application to the Authority. During the year under review the Authority has received 
and approved ten (10) renewals of registration of Audit Firms of PIEs and thirty (30) renewals of 
registration of Certified Auditors of PIEs.
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RENEWAL OF REGISTRATION OF PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs)

In accordance with Regulation 6 (1) of the Financial Reporting (Public Interest Entities) Regulations, 
2016, a PIE or other entity registered as such, shall make an application to renew its registration on or 
before the 1st of January of each year. During the year under review, the Authority has received and 
registered two hundred and ninety (290) PIEs.

MANAGING STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS 

King III Code of Corporate Governance Principles stipulates that the Board should appreciate that 
stakeholders’ perceptions affect the company’s reputation. This year Board approved a 
Communication Policy which has identified BAOA’s stakeholders, their needs and grouped them with 
a view to draw a stakeholder management plan; and strengthen awareness about BAOA’s existence 
and its role; and its relationship with stakeholders. The management plan was driven by BAOA’s 
Management.

The Authority started Stakeholders’ awareness campaigns in 2013 and the consultations gained 
momentum in 2017 after the approval and laying before Parliament of the Regulations on the 31st 
March 2016.

INTERNATIONAL

During the year under review the CEO and the Chairperson of the Board attended the International 
Forum of Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR) Plenary session in Ottawa, Canada.

PARTICIPATION IN LOCAL/INTERNATIONAL FORUMS

The Executive Team continues to make significant progress in achieving representation on international 
forums. 
 
 • BAOA is represented by the CEO on the International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators. 
 • The CEO is one of the founding members of African Forum of Independent Accounting and  
    Auditing  Regulators (AFIAAR).
 • The CEO is also a founding member of the National Integrated Reporting Committee.

Memoranda of Understanding 

During the year under review, the Authority entered into Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs) with:

 • Companies Intellectual Property Authority (CIPA); and
 • Public Enterprises Evaluation and Privatisation Agency (PEEPA)

BAOA is currently negotiating three (3) more MoUs with other Regulators, which will be finalised during 
2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH KING III

To improve the corporate governance principles and to enhance the Board’s accountability, the 
Authority has submitted itself to world class codes on Corporate Governance as the Board appreciates 
that effective governance is a key driver of sustainability and acknowledges its 
responsibility in this regard. The statement below, which is based on the codes published by the King 
Committee, measures the degree of its compliance to the respective codes. Although King III is not 
mandatory for Botswana, the Authority has assessed its governance structure against the principles of 
this code and is proud to be compliant in substantially all areas. 
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King III  King III Principle                     2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

Chapter 1-Ethical Leadership 
and Corporate Citizenship

Chapter 2- Boards and Directors

The Board should provide effective 
leadership based on ethical 
foundation.

The Board should ensure that the 
Authority is and is seen to be a 
responsible corporate citizen.

The Board should ensure that the 
Authority’s ethics are managed 
effectively.

The Board should act as the focal point 
for and custodian of corporate 
govervance.

P P

The Board is governed by a Board Charter which has established 
the Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority’s corporate 
governance framework. The framework has put in place best 
practice guidelines that are conducive to effective leadership.

While the Board embraces the concept of Corporate Social 
Responsibility, limitations of financial resources was a constraint in 
the period under-review. However more needs to be done even 
under the circumstances. This is therefore partly achieved.

There are two sets of Code of ethics that the Authority manages, 
namely Code of Ethics for accountants and BAOA Code of 
Ethics. As a regulator, ethics are very important as disregarding 
them could impair the Authority’s credibility.

The Board is commited to and fully applies good principles of 
corporate governance. The Board has a Charter in place setting 
out its responsibilities. The Board’s sub-committees are also 
governed by Charters and Terms of Reference. The Board and its 
sub-committees meet regularly and the Board charter through 
the overall corporate governance framework ensures that this 
area is well managed.

The Board should appreciate that 
strategy, risk, performance and 
sustainability are inseparable.

The Board participated in the revised and approval of the 
Mid-term Strategic Plan 2018-2020 and monitors its 
implementation through the CEO who reports implementation 
progress at each Board meeting. As part of the strategy the 
Authority came up with an enterprise risk management policy 
that indentifies and manages the risks of the Authority. 

Full Compliance 
Partial Compliance
Not done

KEY:

P
X
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King III  King III Principle                     2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

The Board should provide effective 
leadership based on an ethical 
foundation.

The Board should ensure that the 
Authority is and is seen to be a 
responsible citizen.

The Board should ensure that the 
Authority's ethics are managed 
effectively.

The Board should ensure that the 
Authority has an effective and 
independent audit committee.

The Board should be responsible for the 
governance of risk.

P P

The Board Provides effective leadership through its Board and 
other Charters. The two sets of Ethics referred to in reference 1.3 
above ensure that a conducive ethical culture is cultivated. The 
codes of ethics guide the Authority to conduct business 
ethically.

While the Board embraces the concept of the Corporate Social 
Responsibility, limitations of financial resources was a constraint in 
the period under-review. This area was partly achieved.

There are two sets of Code of Ethics that the Authority manages, 
namely Code of Ethics for accountants and BAOA Code of 
Ethics. Risk is currently the responsibility of the Finance and Audit 
Committee. This is just an interim arrangement as consideration is 
still to be made as to whether, at this infancy stage of the 
Authority, a dedicated risk committee was necessary.

The Finance and Audit Committee (FAC) comprises of 3 
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The FAC meets at least 
four times in a year and reports to the Board during its 
quarterly meetings.

The FAC which reports directly to the Board monitors and 
manages the Authority’s risks. A policy and process of risk 
management has been developed.

The Board should be responsible for 
information technology (IT) 
governance.

The IT Governance Strategy and Policies are in place and have 
been approved by the Board and is managed by FAC.

The Board should ensure that the 
Authority complies with applicable laws 
and considers adherence to 
non-binding rules, codes and 
standards.

The Board ensures compliance with the Financial Reporting Act, 
Companies Act, and the Constitution of the Country, 
Regulations, Rules, Codes and Standards. The Board Secretary 
ensures that the Board complies with applicable laws.
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King III  King III Principle                     2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

The Board should ensure that there is 
an effective risk-based internal audit.

The Board should appreciate that 
stakeholders' perceptions affect the 
Authority's reputation.

P P

P P

X X

The Board resolved that currently the size of BAOA does not 
warrant an independent internal audit function, nonetheless the 
function is carried out by the Technical Department of BAOA.

The Board manages stakeholders in accordance with the 
Authority's Communication Strategy and Policies which were 
approved in 2017. 

The Board should ensure the integrity of 
the Authority's system of Integrated 
Reporting.

The first integrated report will be produced in 2020 and the audit 
committee is aware of the ongoing process with regards to 
preparation of the integrated report. A working committee 
chaired by the Finance Manager has been formed to oversee 
the implementation of integrated reporting.

The Board should report on the 
effectiveness of the Authority's 
internal controls.

The Board resolved that currently the size of BAOA does not 
warrant an independent internal audit function, nonetheless the 
function is carried out by the Technical Department of BAOA.

The Board and its Directors should act 
in the best interests of the Authority.

Upon appointment, every Director is given the Authority's Board 
Charter specifying their duties in accordance with the 
Companies Act, Committees Terms of Reference, the Act, 
Regulations, Codes and Annual Report. Real and perceived 
conflicts of interest are declared annually and during Board 
meetings.

The Board should consider business 
rescue proceedings or other turnaround 
mechanisms as soon as the company is 
financially distressed as defined in the 
ACT.

The Board monitors the Authority’s liquidity position on a quarterly 
basis by reviewing the Authority’s cash position and cash 
forecasts. The Board asseses that the Authority operates as a 
going concern on an annual basis.

The Board should elect a chairman of 
the Board who is an independent 
non-executive director. The CEO should 
not also fulfil the role of chairman of the 
Board.

The Chairperson of the Board is appointed by the Minister of 
Finance and Economic Development (Minister, MFED) in 
accordance with the Act and he is an independent 
non-executive. The CEO does not fulfill the role of chairperson of 
the Board.
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King III  King III Principle                     2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

X X

X X

The Board should appoint the chief 
executive officer and establish a 
framework for the delegation of 
authority.

The CEO for BAOA is appointed by the Minister in accordance 
with Section 20 of the Act, on recommendation by the Board. An 
Authorisation/Delegation framework was approved by the Board 
and is in place to clearly draw a line between the responsibilities 
of the Board and those of the CEO.

The Board should comprise a balance 
of power, with majority of 
non-executive directors. The majority 
of non-executive directors should be 
independent.

The Authority's Board of Directors is wholly non-executive and 
independent of the Authority.

Directors should be appointed through 
a formal process.

The induction of and ongoing training 
and development of Directors should 
be conducted through formal 
processes.

Formal process not in place because six ex-officio directors are 
specified by Section 7 of the Act and only three (3) can be 
subjected to a formal process. 

Induction and training of Directors is done through a formal 
process on an ongoing basis.

The Board should be assisted by a 
competent, suitably qualified and 
experienced Board Secretary.

The evaluation of the Board, its 
Committees and the individual 
Directors should be performed every 
year.

The Board Secretary is appointed by the Board in accordance 
with Section 161 of the Companies Act. The Board Secretary is a 
lawyer and has the requisite experience for the job as required 
by Section 162 of the Companies Act.

Evaluation of the performance of the Board and its Committees 
is performed on a regular basis. The last one was performed in 
2018.

The Board should delegate certain 
functions to well-structured committees 
but without abducting its own 
responsibilities.

All Board Committees' Chairpersons and Vice-Chairpersons are 
Members of the Board and Board Committees operate within 
their set Terms of Reference. The responsibilities of the 
committees is delegated through Terms of Reference approved 
by the Board.

A governance framework should be 
agreed between the group and its 
subsidiary boards.

This principle is not applicable to the Authority.
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King III  King III Principle                     2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

2.25

2.26

2.27

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Organisations should remunerate 
directors and executives fairly and 
responsibly.

Directors’ allowances are paid in accordance with the 
recommendations made by the Ministry of Finance and 
Economic Development of April 2012. Compared to the private 
sector, the allowances are very low.

The Executives’ remuneration is determined by the Board in 
compliance with the Government Revised National Policy on 
Incomes, Employment, Prices and Profits of 2005.

Companies should disclose the 
remuneration of each individual 
director and prescribed officer.

This has been disclosed under the remuneration section.

Shareholders should approve the 
company’s remuneration policy.

Audit committee members should be 
suitably skilled and experienced 
independent non-executive directors.

Directors’ allowances are paid in accordance with the 
recommendations made by the Ministry of Finance and 
Economic Development. 

The Finance and Audit Committee (FAC) comprises of 3 
ndependent Non-Executive Directors. The committee 
comprises of two Chartered Certified Accountants serving 
as Chief Finance Officer and Chief Executive Officer in their 
respective organisations and one Bachelor of Commerce 
Holder serving as the Country’s Accountant General.

The board should ensure that the 
company has an effective and 
independent audit committee.

The Finance and Audit Committee (FAC) comprises of 3 
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The FAC meets at least 
four times in a year and reports to the Board during its quarterly 
meetings.

The audit committee should be chaired 
by an independent non-executive 
director.
The audit committee should oversee 
integrated reporting.

X X

The Finance and Audit Committee (FAC) is chaired by an 
Independent non-executive Director.

The first integrated report will be produced in 2020 and the audit 
committee is aware of the ongoing process with regards to 
preparation of the integrated report. A working committee 
chaired by the Finance Manager has been formed to oversee 
the implementation of integrated reporting.

X X

Chapter 3- AUDIT COMMITTEE

X
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King III  King III Principle                     2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

4.1

4.2

4.3

P P

The audit committee should ensure that 
a combined assurance model is 
applied to provide a coordinated 
approach to all assurance activities.

The reports of both the Internal and External  Audit as conducted 
by the Technical Department and the External Auditors, 
respectively, are both presented at the Finance and Audit 
Committee meeting.

The audit committee should satisfy itself 
of the expertise, resources and 
experience of the company’s finance 
function.

The audit committee should be an 
integral component of the risk 
management process.

The audit committee’s review of the staffing requirements and 
the capacity of the function to deliver in accordance with the 
mandate was done for 2018. 

The Board provides oversight over risk governance through the 
Finance and Audit Committee.

The audit committee is responsible for 
recommending the appointment of the 
external auditor and overseeing the 
external audit process.

The Finance and Audit Committee recommends the 
re-appointment to the Board for approval. The re-appointment 
of External Auditors is a standing agenda item at every first 
meeting of the Board.

The audit committee should be 
responsible for overseeing of internal 
audit.

The Board resolved that currently the size of BAOA does not 
warrant an independent internal audit function, nonetheless the 
function is carried out by the Technical Department of BAOA.

The audit committee should report to 
the board and shareholders on how it 
has discharged its duties.

The board should be responsible for the 
governance of risk.

The Finance and Audit Committee reports to the Board on a 
quarterly basis on how it has discharged its duties and also reports 
annually to the stakeholders through the Annual Report.

The Board provides oversight over risk governance through the 
Finance and Audit Committee. The Board provides oversight to 
this process as disclosed under risk management section.

The board should determine the levels 
of risk tolerance.

The Board determines the level of risk tolerance according to the 
Enterprise Risk Management Framework.

The risk committee or audit committee 
should assist the board in carrying out its 
risk responsibilities.

The Board provides oversight over risk governance through the 
Finance and Audit Committee. 

Chapter 4- GOVERNANCE OF RISK

X
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X

King III  King III Principle                     2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

5.1

5.2

The board should ensure that 
frameworks and methodologies are 
implemented to increase the 
probability of anticipating 
unpredictable risks.

The board should delegate to 
management the responsibility to 
design, implement and monitor the risk 
management plan.

The design and implementation of the risk management plan is 
the responsibility of Management. The Board provides oversight 
through the Finance and Audit Committee. 

The Board provides oversight over risk governance through the 
Finance and Audit Committee. The Enterprise Risk Management 
Frameworks approved by the Board has been implemented.

The board should ensure that 
management considers and 
implements appropriate risk responses.

The Board provides oversight over risk governance through the 
Finance and Audit Committee. Risk responses are assessed and 
reported to the Board.

The board should ensure continual risk 
monitoring by management.

Risk Management reports are submitted to the Finance and 
Audit Committee for consideration.

The board should ensure that risk 
assessments are performed on a 
continual basis.

Risk assessments are performed on a continual basis and 
reported to the Board.

The board should receive assurance 
regarding the effectiveness of the risk 
management process.

The board should ensure that there are 
processes in place enabling complete, 
timely, relevant, accurate and 
accessible risk disclosure to 
stakeholders.

The Finance and Audit Committee presents risk reports 
comprising of mitigation strategies at all its meetings with the 
Board.

A summary of risks and risk oversight is provided in the Annual 
Report.

The board should be responsible for 
information technology (IT) 
governance.

The Board places IT governance as one of the strategic 
objectives and has endorsed the IT strategic plan in order to 
improve IT performance.

IT should be aligned with the 
performance and sustainability 
objectives of the company.

The Board recognises IT as an enabler to achieving the mandate 
of the Authority. The IT plans are in alignment with the overall 
Strategy of the Authority. 

Chapter 5- GOVERNANCE OF 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
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X

King III  King III Principle                     2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

The board should monitor and evaluate 
significant IT investments and 
expenditure.

As per the Authority matrix approved by the Board, all 
investments are evaluated for economic benefit and business 
growth in general. This process is done up to Board level 
depending on the value of the investment.

IT should form an integral part of the 
company’s risk management.

IT is one of the principal risk areas that are managed through the 
Enterprise Risk Management Framework. IT risks are separately 
identified in order to curb against business disruptions and ensure 
business continuity.

The board should ensure that 
information assets are managed 
effectively.

The Board through Management ensures that processes are in 
place to ensure information assets are effectively managed.

The board should delegate to 
management the responsibility for the 
implementation of an IT governance 
framework.

The IT governance is the responsibility of the Board through the 
Finance and Audit Committee. The IT report is presented and 
discussed during quarterly meetings.

A risk committee and audit committee 
should assist the board in carrying out its 
IT responsibilities.

The board should ensure that the 
company complies with applicable 
laws and considers adherence to 
non-binding rules, codes and standard.

IT progress reports are presented at the Finance and Audit 
Committee to ensure that any IT risk is appropriately managed 
and mitigated. 

The Authority complies with applicable laws and non- binding 
rules and codes.

The board and each individual director 
should have a working understanding 
of the effect of the applicable laws, 
rules, codes and standards on the 
company and its    business.

Whenever there are changes to laws or regulations the Authority 
seeks expert advice and training if necessary. If the changes 
affect the Authority directly, they become part of the agenda 
items at Board level.

Compliance risk should form an 
integral part of the company’s risk 
management process.

The compliance risk is monitored and assessed through the 
Authority’s risk management process.

Chapter 6- COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, 
RULES, CODES AND STANDARDS

P
age 34 0f 117



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The board should delegate to 
management the implementation of 
an effective compliance framework 
and processes.

The compliance risk is monitored and assessed through the 
Authority’s risk management process. The incident reporting 
process also covers the risk of non- compliance.

The board should ensure that there is 
an effective risk based internal audit.

The Board resolved that currently the size of BAOA does not 
warrant an independent internal audit function, nonetheless the 
function is carried out by the Technical Department of BAOA.

Internal audit should follow a 
risk- based approach to its plan.

The Board resolved that currently the size of BAOA does not 
warrant an independent internal audit function, nonetheless the 
function is carried out by the Technical Department of BAOA.

X

King III  King III Principle                  2018    2017    Comment
Chapter

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

Internal audit should provide a written 
assessment of the effectiveness of the 
company’s system of internal control 
and risk management.

The Board resolved that currently the size of BAOA does not 
warrant an independent internal audit function, nonetheless the 
function is carried out by the Technical Department of BAOA.

The audit committee should be 
responsible for overseeing internal 
audit.

The board should delegate to 
management to proactively deal with 
stakeholder relationships.

The Board resolved that currently the size of BAOA does not 
warrant an independent internal audit function, nonetheless the 
function is carried out by the Technical Department of BAOA.

Internal audit should be strategically 
positioned to achieve its objectives.

The Board resolved that currently the size of BAOA does not 
warrant an independent internal audit function, nonetheless the 
function is carried out by the Technical Department of BAOA.

Stakeholder relationship management is the primary 
responsibility of the CEO.

The board should appreciate that 
stakeholders’ perceptions affect a 
company’s reputation.

Increasing Stakeholder satisfaction is one of the strategic 
objectives and it emanated from the appreciation by the Board 
that Stakeholder perception is important.

P P

P P

P P

P P

P P

Chapter 7-INTERNAL AUDIT 

Chapter 8-GOVERNING STAKEHOLDER 
RELATIONSHIPS
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The board should strive to achieve the 
appropriate balance between its 
various stakeholder groupings, in the 
best interests of the company.

The Board strives to achieve the appropriate balance between its 
various stakeholder groupings in all its decisions. 

Companies should ensure the 
equitable treatment of shareholders.

The Authority has a cordial relationship with the Government of 
Botswana through the Ministry of Finance and Economic 
Development.

King III  King III Principle                    2018        2017    Comment
Chapter

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

9.1

9.2

9.3 Sustainability reporting and disclosure 
should be independently assured.

The first integrated report will be produced in 2020 and the audit 
committee is aware of the ongoing process with regards to 
preparation of the integrated report. A working committee 
chaired by the Finance Manager has been formed to oversee 
the implementation of integrated reporting.

Sustainability reporting and disclosure 
should be integrated with the 
company’s financial reporting.

The first integrated report will be produced in 2020 and the audit 
committee is aware of the ongoing process with regards to 
preparation of the integrated report. A working committee 
chaired by the Finance Manager has been formed to oversee 
the implementation of integrated reporting.

X X

X X

X X

Transparent and effective 
communication with stakeholders is 
essential for building and maintaining 
their trust and confidence.

The Authority produces the Annual Report within reasonable 
timelines. A Newsletter is also published for the 
Stakeholders to obtain information on time. Any pertinent 
information that needs to be communicated to the stakeholders 
is also communicated through the website and individually 
addressed emails.

The board should ensure disputes are 
resolved as effectively, efficiently and 
expeditiously as possible.

The Board resolves the disputes effectively, efficiently and 
expeditiously as possible through the formal dispute resolution 
mechanisms established in the Board Charter.

The board should ensure the integrity of 
the company’s integrated report.

The first integrated report will be produced in 2020 and the audit 
committee is aware of the ongoing process with regards to 
preparation of the integrated report. A working committee 
chaired by the Finance Manager has been formed to oversee 
the implementation of integrated reporting.

CHAPTER 9-INTEGRATED REPORTING 
AND DISCLOSURE
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THE APPEALS COMMITTEE

THE APPEALS COMMITTEE

The Appeals Committee is a Statutory Committee appointed by the Minister of Finance and Economic 
Development (MFED) in accordance with Section 40(1) of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 to hear 
and determine appeals made from the decisions of the Authority’s Board, the Authority or any of its 
Committees.

In accordance with BAOA Rules, the Chairperson of the Authority’s Appeals Committee must be an 
experienced Attorney/Advocate or a retired judge. The Minister of Finance and Economic 
Development appointed Mr Sipho Ziga, an experienced practising Attorney and partner at Armstrongs 
Attorneys, the Chairperson of the Authority’s Appeals Committee for a period of three (3) years ending 
on the 30th September 2019, with the possibility of re-appointment.

The Appeals Committee is independent of the Authority’s Board, but in accordance with Section 40 (2) 
of the Act, the Committee determines its own procedure, in consultation with the Authority for the 
hearing of appeals made in terms of subsection (1). Upon realising that this arrangement might create 
a perception that the Committee is not independent of the Authority, the MFED decided that there 
must be establishment of an Independent Accountancy Oversight Appeals Committee which will have 
its own independent Secretariat, and which will be reporting directly to the MFED. The establishment of 
an Independent Appeals Committee is part of the amendment of the Financial Reporting Act 2010; No 
cases were brought before this Committee during 2018.

SIPHO ZIGA
Chairperson

SETSHEDI BOTLHOLE-MMOPI 
Member

TENDANI H. WOTHO 
Member

 RAMOLELWANE MAKUBATE 
Member
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEW COMMITTEE 

AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEW COMMITTEE 

I have the pleasure of presenting the report of the Audit Practice Review Committee (APRC) for the 
period ending 31 December 2018.

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

The purpose of the APRC is, amongst other things, to uphold the highest standards of professionalism in 
the audit profession by ensuring compliance with the International Standard on Quality Control 1 (ISQC 
1), applicable Assurance Standards, the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and other relevant financial reporting frameworks, relevant 
pronouncements, and local legislation applicable in the conduct of assurance and related services.  
This entails, amongst others, the adoption of a stringent audit certification process for audit firms and 
their certified auditors as well as robust audit independence programs.

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

The Committee currently consists of the following three (3) Board members:

Mr. Mendel N. Nlanda (Chairperson);
Mr. Daniel N. Loeto (Vice-Chairperson); and
Mr. Oaitse M. Ramasedi (Member).

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The APRC met three (3) times during the year, as per the attendance register below:

        Meeting Attendance 
  Committee Member  Date of  22 March      30 August       15 November   Total
    Appointment        2018  2018                2018

  Mr. Mendel N. Nlanda July 2014          3/3

  Mr. Daniel N. Loeto  Dec 2014          3/3

  Mr. Oaitse M. Ramasedi July 2014          3/3

Key:
 -  Present  A-  Apologies

MENDEL N. NLANDA 
Chairperson

OAITSE M. RAMASEDI 
Member

DANIEL N. LOETO
Vice-Chairperson
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COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEWS

INTRODUCTION

One of the major mandates of the Authority is to undertake audit practice reviews of audit firms and 
their attest partners or practitioners.

Audit practice reviews consist of a firm (quality control) review and a review of selected assurance 
engagements carried out by each firm’s attest (assurance) engagement Partners (interchangeably 
referred to as Practitioners).  

A firm review consists of an examination of the six (6) elements of a firm’s system of Quality Control 
Policies and Procedures, namely: Leadership Responsibilities, Independence & Ethical Requirements; 
Acceptance & Continuance; Human Resources; Engagement Performance; and Monitoring. The aim 
of the examination is to ensure that the system conforms in all material respects to the standard 
requirements of ISQC 1. 

An engagement review aims to obtain reasonable assurance that audit engagement Partners in a 
certified audit firm comply with the applicable Assurance Standards; International Financial Reporting 
Standards; Code of Ethics; and applicable laws and regulations, and that reports issued by the firm or 
engagement Partners are appropriate in the circumstances.

In terms of its audit practice review mandate, the Authority is responsible for Firms and Certified Auditors 
of Public Interest Entities. However, the Authority has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
with Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants (BICA), whereby the Authority will undertake audit 
practice reviews of audit firms and Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities until such a time that 
the legislation is changed to give the Authority the responsibility to undertake inspections of all audit 
firms and certified auditors in Botswana. The Authority has adopted a three-year inspection cycle which 
requires that all audit firms and their practitioners be reviewed within the three-year cycle period. The 
first cycle ended on the 31 December 2017 and the second cycle commenced on the 01 January 
2018. This report discusses the results of the reviews for 2018 and for the first full cycle in summary.

PROCESS OF APPROVAL OF AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEW REPORTS

After carrying out an audit practice review, the Technical Department prepares and submits audit 
practice review reports to the APRC, a subcommittee of the Authority’s Board, for their consideration.

Final results of audit practice reviews are determined in terms of predetermined criteria applicable to 
the audit practice review cycle. The APRC’s final decision would be one of the following:

• Satisfactory, meaning the next audit practice review will be carried out in the next cycle;

• Unsatisfactory, meaning some matters still require attention before a satisfactory result can be  
 achieved and a follow-up audit practice review will be scheduled within 12 to 24 months; or

• Referral to the Enforcement Committee, which could then attract possible sanctions by the  
 Committee.

Audit practice review reports for Audit Firms and Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities will be 
examined by the APRC, who will then recommend a course of action to the Authority’s Board.

In respect of Audit Firms and Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities, the APRC will examine 
audit practice review reports prepared by the Technical Department and recommend a course of 
action to BICA, through the Authority’s Board. BICA will then make the final decision and inform their 
members accordingly. 
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With regard to Audit Firms and Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities, the Authority has adopted a 
developmental policy whereby an audit firm or audit practitioner will be deregistered if their 
performance in an audit practice review is unsatisfactory in accordance with the following criteria:

• three times in a row, with no prospect of making minimal improvements to attain the required 
 performance standards in the short-term; or
• At first or second review; where it is determined that the performance is so inadequate that  
 continued practice of the firm or Practitioner could seriously harm public interest or the interests  
 of those who rely on the reports of the firm or Practitioner.

In respect of Audit Firms and Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities, BICA has adopted a 
three-strike rule which requires that an audit firm or audit practitioner be deregistered if their 
performance in an audit practice review is unsatisfactory three times in a row.

AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEWS UNDERTAKEN IN 2018 
 
OVERVIEW OF AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEW 
 
Nine (9) certified audit firms and their certified auditors were reviewed during 2018. One (1) of these was 
a certified audit firm of Public Interest Entities, and eight (8) were certified audit firms of Non-Public 
Interest Entities. 
 
Overall, the quality of the firms’ system of quality control (firm reviews) has not improved in terms of 
average number of findings per audit firm. The average number of findings remained virtually static at 
five (5) findings for certified audit firms of Public Interest Entities and slightly decreased for certified audit 
firms of Non- Public Interest Entities from seven (7) to six (6) findings (see Table A). 

For the engagement reviews, the quality of the audits does not seem to be improving. As it will be noted 
in Table B, the average number of findings per attest partner increased in 2018 for certified auditors of 
Public Interest Entities to twenty-three (23) from eight (8) in the first cycle while for certified auditors of 
non- Public Interest Entities the average number of findings decreased slightly to twenty-four (24) from 
twenty-seven (27) in the first cycle. Clear distinctions can be noted for small audit firms which continue 
to record a high number of findings when compared to the “big” audit firms.  Small audit firms find it 
difficult to resource their practices with adequately competent staff and engagement quality control 
structures to cope with the ever-changing audit and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
landscape.

The Authority participated in the International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR) 2018 
Survey of Inspection Findings in which member countries were required, among other things, to classify 
findings into audit practice review/inspection themes provided by IFIAR.  All findings arising from both 
the firm and engagement reviews were classified into the IFIAR Inspection Themes. The detailed analysis 
of firm review and engagement review findings are provided below. 
 
FIRM REVIEWS 
 
All the key elements of each firm’s system of Quality Control Policies and Procedures were reviewed on 
a sample basis and were then compared to the standard requirements of ISQC 1. All deviations from 
the requirements of ISQC 1 were noted as “findings” and were allocated to their respective ISQC 1 
element. 
 
Provided in Table A below are the findings for 2018 and for the first cycle; allocated to each ISQC 1 
element (IFIAR Theme), and split between audit firms of Public Interest Entities and Audit Firms of 
Non-Public Interest Entities: 
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Table A: Firm Review Findings allocated to the ISQC 1 IFIAR “Inspection Themes”

SYSTEM OF QUALITY CONTROL IFIAR 
Inspection Theme

Leadership Responsibilities for Quality 
withing the firm(i.e. Tone at the top)
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The nine (9) firms that were reviewed in 2018 recorded an average number of findings of 5 (five) per 
audit firm. For the first three-year cycle (2015-2017) twenty-eight (28) audit firms recorded an average 
number of findings of six (6) per firm.
 
The number of findings for the one (1) certified audit firm of public interest entities reviewed in 2018 was 
five (5). Over the first audit practice review cycle, the average number of findings for the ten (10) audit 
firms of Public Interest Entities reviewed was five (5). 
 
With regard to audit firms of Non-Public Interest Entities, the performance of the eight (8) audit firms 
reviewed in 2018 recorded an average number of findings of six (6); while for the first cycle, the 
eighteen (18) firms recorded an average number of findings of seven (7). 
 
 Analysis of the ISQC 1 findings by IFIAR inspection theme

The findings as  summarised in Table A  above, split  by  System of Quality Control IFIAR Inspection 
Themes are further analysed below, by each theme’s contribution to the total findings:

The Engagement Performance theme made the largest contribution to the total findings of 53% in 2018 
and 28% in the first cycle. Audit Firms of Non-Public Interest Entities accounted for 49% of the findings, 
while audit firms of Public Interest Entities accounted for only 4% in 2018.   
 
The Monitoring theme accounted for the second highest contribution to total findings of 18% in 2018 
and 14% for the first cycle.  Audit Firms of Non-Public Interest Entities contributed 16% of the findings 
compared to 2% contributed by Audit Firms of Public Interest Entities in 2018.
 
The Independence & Ethical Requirement element contributed 11% to the findings in 2018, and 17% in 
the first cycle. The entire 11% was attributed to Audit Firms of Non - Public Interest Entities.

Engagement Reviews  
 
During 2018, a total of twenty-six (26) engagement reviews under the responsibility of thirteen (13) 
practitioners across nine (9) audit firms were carried out. During the first three-year cycle (2015-2017), a 
total of eighty-six (86) engagements under the responsibility of forty-five (45) practitioners across 
twenty-eight (28) audit firms were undertaken. 
 
The results of the review of practitioners and the total number of findings, split between Certified 
Auditors of Public Interest Entities and Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities are provided in the 
Table B below:
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As will be noted from Table B above, of the total of thirteen (13) Certified Auditors reviewed in 2018,  the 
performance of one (1) Certified Auditor of Public Interest Entities and five (5) Certified Auditors of 
Non-Public Interest Entities were “Satisfactory” while the performances of the other Certified Auditor of 
Public Interest Entities and six (6) Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities were “Unsatisfactory”. 
For the first cycle, of the total of forty-five (45) Certified Auditors reviewed twenty-four (24) Certified 
Auditors of Public Interest Entities and six (6) Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities) were 
“Satisfactory”. This meant that twelve (12) Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities and three (3) 
Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities were “Unsatisfactory”

Engagement Review Results: Analysis by Audit Area (IFIAR Inspection Theme Findings) 
 
All deviations from the requirements of applicable Assurance Standards, International Financial 
Reporting Standards, Code of Ethics, and applicable laws and regulations were noted as “findings”.  
 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEW COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Table B: Summary of Engagement Review Results for Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities and 
Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities

DESCRIPTIONS

NUMBER OF FIRMS
Total Number of Partners

Total Number of Attest Partners Reviewed

Total Number of Attest Clients (Total 

practitioners client Portfolio)

Total Number of Attest (Assurance) 

Engagements Reviewed

Total Number of Findings

Average number of findings per Attest 

Partner

Attest Partner Rating:

1.     Satisfactory

2.     Unsatisfactory

Total Attest Partners

Firm Ratings:

1.     Satisfactory

2.     Unsatisfactory

Total Firms
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2
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Each engagement finding was allocated to one of the seventeen (17) Audit Inspection Themes (audit areas) provided by the IFIAR for the 2018 
Survey. These were in turn split between Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities and Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities. The results 
are provided in Table C below: 

Table C: Engagement Review Findings split by IFIAR Inspection Themes

IFIAR INSPECTION THEMES

Group Audits

Internal Control Testing

Adequacy of Financial Statement Presen-
tation and Disclosures
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IFIAR INSPECTION THEMES

Inventory Procedures

Related Party Transactions 
Engagement Quality Control Reviewers 
("EQCR")

Going Concern

Adequacy of Review and Supervision 

Audit Sampling
Audit of Allowance for Loan Losses and 
Loan Impairments

Other Areas/Topics

TOTAL FINDINGS
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241 (77%) of the 312 total findings for 2018 were for Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities, while 
the remaining 71 (23%) were for Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities. In the first cycle, of the 711 
findings, 490 (69 %) relate to Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities while 221 (31%) were for 
Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities. 
  
Most of the findings in the 2018 reviews were in the theme of “Adequacy of Review and Supervision” 
(62%), split between Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities (48%) and Certified Auditors of 
Public Interest Entities (14%). This was followed by the “Adequacy of Financial Statement Presentation 
and Disclosures” theme with (11%) of the findings, split between Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest 
Entities (9%) and Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities (2%).  

This was also the case during the first cycle, as most of the findings related to the theme of ‘Adequacy 
of Review and Supervision’ (51%), split between Certified Auditors of Non-Public Interest Entities (37%) 
and Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities (14%). This was also followed by the ‘Adequacy of
Financial Statement Presentation and Disclosures’ theme (19%), split between Certified Auditors of 
Non-Public Interest Entities (10%) and Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities (9%). 
 
SUMMARY OF AUDIT PRACTICE REVIEW FINDINGS AND DECISIONS  

The Engagement Performance element of an audit firm’s system of quality control tends to have the 
most significant impact on the overall performance in a firm review. Therefore, all audit practices with 
engagement practitioners whose performance was “Unsatisfactory” in engagement reviews also 
attained an “Unsatisfactory” rating in the Engagement Performance element of the firm review; and 
consequently, attained an “Unsatisfactory” rating in the overall audit practice review.  
 
Of the nine (9) audit firm reviews undertaken during 2018, two (2) (22%) attained a “Satisfactory” rating 
while six (6) (67%) attained an “Unsatisfactory” rating with a recommendation for a re-review within 18 
to 24 months;  one (1) (11%) attained an ‘Unsatisfactory’ rating for the third time in a row (See Table B 
above) and the practitioner’s certificate was revoked in line with the BICA’s three strike rule.

During the first cycle, twenty-eight (28) firms were reviewed. Thirteen (13) (46%) of these attained a 
‘Satisfactory’ rating; eleven (11) (39%) attained ‘Unsatisfactory’ rating and were recommended to be 
re-reviewed; four (4) (15%) attained an ‘Unsatisfactory’ rating for the third time in a row and three (3) of 
these practitioners’ certificates were revoked in line with the BICA’s three strikes rule while one (1) is 
pending the final outcome from BICA (See table B above).

The Authority, however, wishes to emphasize that the primary objective of audit practice reviews is to 
raise the standard of audit and protect public interest. For that reason, the Authority’s audit practice 
review reports are proactive and forward looking and contain detailed recommendations and 
guidance to enable audit practices to improve their performance and overall standard of audit, where 
such need has been identified. Deregistration of an audit Practitioner or firm is a last resort and will only 
be considered if an audit firm/practitioner fails three reviews consecutively, and it is determined that 
there is little prospect of an audit firm/practitioner improving in the short-term in order to meet the 
minimum performance standards; or if the performance of a firm or practitioner, even if at first or 
second review, is considered so inadequate that continued practice would put public interest or those 
for whom the audit reports are intended, at significant risk.  

CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the results of the audit practice reviews undertaken by the Authority in 2018, it is evident that 
audit firms need to improve their systems of quality controls, particularly the Engagement Performance 
and Monitoring elements.

Mendel N. Nlanda
Chairperson
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It gives me great pleasure to present below, my report as Chairperson of the Enforcement Committee 
(EC), for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RESPONSIBILITIES 

Enforcement Committee (EC) is responsible for the sanctioning of individuals and entities that do not 
meet the expected standards as contained in the reports from the Audit Practice Review and the 
Financial Reporting Monitoring Committees. The Committee is also responsible for handling, as 
delegated to it by the Board, all breaches or suspected breaches constituting professional misconduct 
or other violations of the Act by Professional Accountants, but which are not directly related to audit 
practice reviews and financial reporting monitoring.  

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

During 2018, the Committee consisted of the following three (3) Board members:
Ms Zoe A. Isaacs (Chairperson);
Mr. Daniel N. Loeto (Vice-Chairperson); and
Mr. Keneilwe R. Morris (resigned on 28th November 2018).

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

Following the approval of the formation of the Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority Appeals 
Committee (BAOAC) in 2016, The Financial Reporting Act, 2010 (the Act) needed to be amended to 
accommodate the proposed change.  The motivation for this proposal was to promote the 
independence of the Appeals process from the profession and the Authority. The amendments were 
incorporated in the Draft amendments of the Act which are currently with the office of the Attorney 
General for drafting.

The work of the Committee is very much dependent on appeals from cases of breaches of the Act, 
Rules and Regulations of the Authority that are referred to it as necessary. However, no case 
requiring the attention or action of the Committee was referred to the Committee in 2018.  However, 
the Committee continued to monitor the situation in 2018 and made follow-ups on progress on the 
drafting of the revised Act.

Zoë A. Isaacs
Chairperson

ZOË A. ISAACS
Chairperson

DANIEL N. LOETO 
Vice-Chairperson

KENEILWE R. MORRIS
Member
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FINANCIAL REPORTING MONITORING COMMITTEE 

FINANCIAL REPORTING MONITORING COMMITTEE

I have the pleasure of presenting the report of the Financial Reporting Monitoring Committee (FRMC) 
for 2018.

RESPONSIBILITIES 

The FRMC’s main purpose is summarised in Section 56 of the Financial Reporting  Act, 2010; as to review 
the financial statements of Public Interest Entities( PIEs) or other entities  required under any enactment 
to file its financial statements and reports with a Government department or authority, in order to 
determine whether they are in compliance with the law and applicable reporting requirements as 
stipulated in the Act and the Authority’s Rules and Regulations; with the ultimate objective of protecting 
public interest. 

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

The Committee consisted of the following three (3) Board members:
Mr. Oaitse M. Ramasedi (Chairperson);
Mr. Thapelo Tsheole (Vice-Chairperson); and 
Ms. Lynette Armstrong (member).

The attendance register of committee members is presented below:

        Meeting Attendance
Committee Member      Date of      Term End   23 March   14 August     4 December Total
        Appointment         2018           2018         2018

Mr. Oaitse Ramasedi     Dec 2014      Dec 2020         3/3

Mr. Thapelo Tsheole     Oct 2015      Oct 2021  A          2/3

Ms. Lynetter Armstrong   Oct 2015      Oct 2021         3/3

Key:  -     Present   A   -    Apologies

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

One of the functions of the Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority (the Authority) under the 
Financial Reporting Act, 2010 is to regulate the reporting of financial matters of PIEs and the corporate 
sector and matters incidental thereto. This mandate is divided into two sections: Financial Reporting 
Monitoring; and Corporate Governance Reviews.

a) Financial Reporting Monitoring

With respect to the regulation of the reporting of financial matters of PIEs and the corporate sector, 
Section 6.2 of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 states that “In the performance of its functions, the 
Authority shall:

THAPELO TSHEOLE  
Vice-Chairperson

OAITSE M. RAMASEDI 
Chairperson

LYNETTE ARMSTRONG  
Member
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a) Financial Reporting Monitoring (continued)

i) review and analyse financial reports and identify any failure on the part of the public interest
 entity to comply with the requirements of any relevant law or any financial reporting standard,  
 code or guideline issued under this Act; and 

ii) inform the public interest entity of its shortcomings in its financial report and the required action  
 to rectify the shortcomings”.

Given the foregoing, the primary purpose of Financial Reporting Monitoring includes the following:

i) Financial Statements Reviews for compliance with accounting and reporting requirements  
 intended to identify cases where it appears that the accounting and reporting requirements  
 have not been complied with;

ii) Ratio analysis of financial statements intended to assess the performance of PIEs or other 
 entities falling within the Act, and the respective authorities advised accordingly about the 
 performance, especially in respect of those entities that may be regarded as under financial  
 stress; and 

iii) Examination of Business Reviews and other forms of non-financial reporting intended to ensure  
 that the public is accurately informed about the entity’s reporting of non-financial matters in a  
 comprehensive and balanced manner.

b) Corporate Governance

Regarding Corporate Governance, Section 5(g) of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 sets out one of the 
principal objectives of the Authority as “to promote high standards of corporate governance and 
compliance with professional ethics.” 

However, the Act did not provide any further guidance as to what “corporate governance” entailed, 
and how the Authority should proceed in fulfilling its mandate in that regard.

After Management had carried out research to determine the most appropriate corporate 
governance model for Botswana, the Authority’s Board arrived at the conclusion that the King III Code 
of Corporate Governance (King III) would be the most suitable corporate governance system for 
Botswana.

Therefore, a Corporate Governance Procedures Manual based on King III was compiled, approved by 
the Authority’s Board for the internal use of the Authority in August 2016, and is being used to provide 
guidance regarding:

i) the corporate governance standards and codes that PIEs regulated by the Authority are   
 expected to use; and 

ii) review programs which the Authority is expected to use to ensure conformance with the 
 recommended corporate governance standards and codes by PIEs; or one that achieves  
 similarly high standards of corporate governance that include practically all the recommended  
 best practice corporate governace that include practically all the recommeded best practice  
 corporate governance elements and principles , and as a required by applicable laws, rules  
 and codes.

Process of approval of Financial Monitoring and Corporate Governance Reports

After carrying out Financial Reporting Monitoring and Corporate Governance reviews, the Authority 
prepares and submits Financial Reporting Monitoring and Corporate Governance reports to the 
Financial Reporting Monitoring Committee (FRMC), a subcommittee of the Authority’s Board, for their 
consideration.
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Process of approval of Financial Monitoring and Corporate Governance Reports (continued)

Final results of Financial Reporting Monitoring and Corporate Governance reviews are determined in 
terms of predetermined criteria applicable. The FRMC’s final decision is based on the following:

• Whether the Financial Statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards  
 (“IFRS”);

• Whether the entity has the ability to continue as a going concern; 

• Whether the public had not been misinformed about the non-financial matters of the entity;  
 and

• Whether the entity had complied with the requirements of King III in all material respects.

Financial Reporting Monitoring and Corporate Governance review reports will be examined by the 
FRMC, who will then recommend a course of action to the Authority’s Board. The final report is 
addressed to the PIE’s Board of Directors through the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Sanctions of Public Interest and other entities, and their officers for non-compliance with any financial 
reporting standards, codes or guidelines issued under the Financial Reporting Act, 2010.

Sanctions against public interest entities and their officers for non-compliance with financial reporting 
standards, codes or guidelines, are stipulated in the Financial Reporting Act, 2010, but may, in any 
case, include either issuance of a warning to the entity or serving a notice on the entity for an 
immediate restatement of its financial statements or report, or both.

Financial Reporting Monitoring and Corporate Governance Reviews Strategic Plan

i) Review Cycle

The Authority has adopted a five-year review cycle, and a risk-based approach whereby every PIE 
registered with the Authority will be reviewed at least once every five years. However, some PIEs may be 
subjected to more than one review during a particular review cycle depending on the risk profile of an 
entity as determined by the Authority and the results of the initial review. Where there are critical 
findings, the Authority’s Board may recommend a re-review after 18-24 months to check if the action 
plans have been implemented.

ii) Review Cycle Plan 

The first five-year review cycle commenced 1 January 2017 and 2018 is the second year of the 
five-year review cycle.
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 ii) Review Cycle Plan (continued)

The Authority had registered two hundred and ninety (290) PIEs in 2018 (2017:246), representing an 
increase of 44 entities and categorised as follows:

Financial Reporting Monitoring Reviews undertaken in 2018

Eight(8) financial reporting monitoring and corporate governance reviews were completed by the 
Authority during the period January 2018 to December 2018.  Of these, one was a listed entity and 
seven were parastatals. The reviews consisted of a financial reporting review and a corporate 
governance review.

Category  2018  

Listed on the Botswana Stock Exchange 27  

Supervised by Bank of Botswana  28  

Supervised by the Non-banking financial institutions  129  

Determined by the Minister under Section 22(d), FRA,2010  50  

Required to file financial statements and reports with a government 
department or authority under Section 56(1) of the FRA,2010    

 

56

Total  290  
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Review Description Total Listed  (Private 
Public Interets 

Entity

Listed  
Parastatal

Prastatal
(Unlisted)

2018

Total Entities Reviewed

Type of Review 

Complies with IFRS, laws and 
regulations:
 1. Yes
 2. No

Satisfied Going Concern 
Requirements:
 1. Yes

 2. No

Compliance with KING III or 
equivalent requirements:
 1. Significantly Compliant

 2. Partially Compliant

 3. Not Compliant

OVERALL ENTITY RATING:

    1. Satisfactory

    2. Satisfactory with deficiecies

    3. Unsatisfactory  

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (CONTINUED) 
FINANCIAL REPORTING MONITORING COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The results of the reviews are summarised in the table below.

SUMMARY OF ENTITIES’ REVIEW RESULTS

Total Listed  (Private 
Public Interets 

Entity

Listed  
Parastatal

Parastatal
(Unlisted)

8 1

1 4 3 1

3

1 7 3 1

3 2 1

3

1 1 1

1 5 3 1

2 1

- 7 5 3 1 1

1

1

1

2017

P
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As will be noted in the Table above, of the eight (8) entities, (2017:5) that were reviewed in 2018:

a)  five (5) complied with IFRS, laws and regulations reporting requirements in all material respects;  
 while three (3) did not comply;
b) all eight (8) entities satisfied the going concern requirements;
c) three (3) entities were significantly compliant, two (2) entities were partially compliant and three  
 (3) parastatals were not compliant with King III requirements. Appropriate recommendations for 
 improvement have been made to the entities; and
d) overall, six (6) entities attained satisfactory results with deficiences while two (2) parastatals   
 attained unsatisactory results. It is expected that a re-review for entities that were either not  
 compliant with IFRS or not or partially compliant with the requirements of King III will be 
 undertaken in the next 18-24 months.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING MONITORING

Below is the summary of common findings noted in Financial Reporting Monitoring for the 2018 financial 
year:
 
   

3 7 7 17
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FINDING AS PER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 
REPORTING STANDARDS(IFRS) 2018

 THEME

Primary Financial
Statements 

Non -current assets 
presentation
and disclosure

Consolidation or 
Group 
reporting

IAS 1:  Presentation of financial statements
• material differences between primary financial 
 statement balances and notes; 
• non-disclosure of required financial statement line   
 items.

Inadequate Disclosure of:
• IAS 2: inventory write downs, inventory expensed   
 during the year;
• IAS 16: cost model carrying amounts for PPE assets   
 held at valuation
• IAS 40: direct operating expenses, rental received and  
 valuer information for investment property.

• IFRS 3: insufficient business combination disclosures.
• IFRS 11: Incorrect accounting for “joint ventures and  
 joint operations".

1 1 2 4Income taxes IAS 12-Non-disclosure of:
• tax portion relating to other comprehensive income;
• tax rate reconciliation.

- 3 4 7Accounting 
policies

IAS 8-Accounting policies:
• nature and extent of government grant not disclosed;
• non-disclosure of accounting policies on a material 
 balances;
• disclosure of “boiler plate/irrelevant accounting   
 policies.
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FINDING AS PER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 
REPORTING STANDARDS(IFRS) 2018

 THEME

- - 7 7

- 3 5 8

- 2 1 3

1 3 - 4

1 4 7 12

1 4 - 5

9 29 40 78

Leases IAS 17: Inadequate disclosures of:
• minimum lease payments; 
• significant leasing arrangements.

Income statement 
presentation and 
disclosure

Related party 
disclosures

Non- disclosure of:
• IAS 19: Defined contribution expense;
• IFRS 15: Contract assets, contract liabilities and 
 performance contracts obligations;
• IAS 7: Interest paid/received in the statement of 
 cashflows.
• IAS 24: Incorrect/inadequate disclosures of related   
 party balances and transactions.

General 
deficiencies in 
disclosures

• IAS 33: Weighted average number of shares in 
 calculating EPS not disclosed.
• IAS 37: Description of the nature of a provision not   
 disclosed
• IFRS 8: Inadequate disclosures on factors used to 
 identify reportable segments

Valuation

Subsequent events

Total

Inadequate disclosures of:
• IFRS 13: Level 2 and Level 3 information;
• IFRS 7: collateral; gains and losses on financial 
 instruments; market related risks and financial 
 instruments carried at fair value.

IAS 10: Dividends approved after balance sheet date 
incorrectly accrued for 
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REVIEWS

Below is the summary of common findings noted in Corporate Governance for the 2018 financial 
year:
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FINDINGS THEME

Compliance Code 
disclosure

1 2 4 7

- 2 10 12

2 6 20 28

- 3 16 19

- - 2 2

- 3 5 8

1

2

5 5 11

- 5 8 13

No statement of compliance with a corporate governance 
code such as King III or similar code

Board 
Composition and 
succession

Board Annual 
Report disclosures

• Membership of the Board not according to best 
 practice, example: no executive directors and 
 inadequate mix of independent non-executive 
 director and non-executive
• No succession plan for the Board Chairperson or other  
 key roles in the entity

Inadequate/non-disclosure in the Annual Report of Board 
members information:
• Qualifications and experience
• Induction, training and development 
• Board & its Committees meeting attendance registers 
• Independence assessment of the Non-Executive   
 Directors

Board 
appointment & 
removal process 

• Inadequate policies for appointment and removal of 
 Directors
• Absence of Board Nomination Committee

Board secretary • Absence of official Board Secretary 
• Executive director acting as Board Secretary

Board Evaluation

Directors’ 
remuneration 
approval and 
disclosures

Evaluation of the Board, its committees and individual 
directors not performed.

• No shareholder approval of Directors remuneration   
 policy;
• Inadequate Annual Report disclosures of 
 remuneration of Directors.

Effectiveness of 
the Audit 
Committee and 
risk assessment

• Not all members of the Audit Committee were 
 independent Non-Executive Directors
• Audit Committee Chairperson not independent 
• Internal audit function not subjected to a Quality   
 Assurance and Improvement Programme review

8 15 25

- - 2 2

Effectiveness of 
Internal audit

Timely reporting

• No effective risk based internal audit review
• Internal audit function not reporting functionally to the  
 Board Audit Committee

The Annual Report not prepared timely

- - 1 1Shareholder 
compact

There was no shareholder compact

6 34 88 128Total findings
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Key:
BOB: Bank of Botswana
BSE:  Botswana Stock Exchange
SOE: State Owned Entities / Parastatals

CONCLUSION

Based on the results of the Financial Reporting Monitoring and Corporate Governance reviews 
undertaken in 2018, it is evident that a significant number of Parastatals are not complying with IFRS and 
do not meet the minimum requirements of King III Code of Corporate Governance. PIEs will need to 
strive to meet the requirements of IFRSs and also meet the minimum corporate governance 
benchmarks required under the King III Code of Corporate Governance or its equivalent.

GRATITUDE

I wish to thank my fellow Committee members for their valuable contributions and the Board for their 
guidance; and the Chief Executive Officer and his Management Team for providing appropriate 
secretarial support that made our work manageable.

Oaitse M. Ramasedi
Chairperson
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MENDEL N. NLANDA  
Vice-Chairperson

THAPELO TSHEOLE  
Member

LYNETTE ARMSTRONG
Chairperson

RUDI BINEDELL   
Member

KEALEBOGA MOLELOWATLADI 
Member

MBUSI NDEBELE  
Member

EUGENE MWABA 
Member

TUMELO KEITUMETSE
Member

NOT IN PICTURE
KENNETH MABOTE-Member    |   PYOKA MFUNI  Member-(Resigned Dec 2018)  
|   KEBAFENTSE H. KETSHAJWANG Member
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The Standard Setting Committee (SSC) is pleased to present its report for the 2018 financial year.

RESPONSIBILITIES 
The purpose of the SSC as set out at Sections 52 and 53 of the Financial Reporting Act,2010 is to adopt, 
issue and keep up-to-date financial reporting standards and auditing standards; and issue appropriate 
interpretations, rules and guidelines for the purposes of implementing financial reporting standards, 
auditing standards and corporate governance codes adopted or issued by the Committee.  The 
Committee’s role is to ensure that Public Interest Entities and auditors apply financial reporting, auditing 
standards and corporate governance codes which conform to international best practice.

ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR
During 2018, the SSC undertook the following activities:

a) Working groups
In order to expand the coverage of the Committee’s activities, the following working groups were 
formed:

i. Auditing Working Group
The Auditing Working Group’s responsibilities includes the monitoring of new issues, 
revisions/amendments of auditing standards. The Working Group also considers requests for comments 
on Exposure Drafts and Consultations Papers in relation to International Standards on Auditing and 
related standards and codes.

ii. Financial Reporting and Corporate Governance Working Group
The Financial Reporting and Corporate Governance Working Group’s responsibilities includes 
responding to changes in International Financial Reporting Standards, corporate governance codes 
and related standards and codes.

b) Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) in Botswana
This has been finalised and printed, copies are currently being distributed.

c) Article on corporate governance
The article on corporate governance has been completed and will be published in “The Oversight” 
Second Edition.

d) Work in progress
 The two working groups have some topics which are still work in progress. These include:

 i) Financial Reporting and Corporate Governance Working Group
 • IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
 • IFRS 16 Leases;
 • New standards issued but not yet effective; and
 • Integrated reporting.

 ii) Auditing Working Group:
 • Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP);
 • The application of International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and International 
  Standards for Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAIs); and
 • Differentiation of materiality levels for audit and financial reporting purposes.

iii) Balanced Score Card
In order to enhance the effectiveness of the Committee a balanced score card was implemented 
during the year 2018. After each Committee meeting, members complete the score card and the 
Secretariat presents the results at a subsequent meeting.

iv) New members 
New members were co-opted to enhance the work of the Committee and the Sub - Committees. 
These include: Mr. Kealeboga Molelowatladi, Mr. Tumelo Keitumetse, Mr. Mbusi Ndebele and 
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COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The SSC met twice during the year. However, the Auditing Working Group met once while the 
Financial Reporting and Corporate governance Working Group met twice. The members attendance 
register is documented below:

Committee           Institution  Date Of     Meeting      Working Group
 Member         Represented Appointment  Attendance           Membership
        

 Ms. Lynette         Main BAOA
 Armstrong         Board  Oct. 2016         3/4      By Invitation

 Mr. Mendel          Main BAOA
 N. Nlanda         Board  Aug. 2014         1/3      Auditing

 Mr. Thapelo          Main BAOA             Financial 
 Tsheole         Board  Jan. 2016         2/4      Reporting &
                 Corporate  Gov.

 BICA - Mr Rudi 
 Binedell         BICA  Nov. 2017         2/3      Auditing

 Mr Tumelo M.         Institute of 
 Keitumetse         Internal Auditors May 2018         3/3      Auditing

 Ms Kebafentse H. 
 Ketshajwang         Auditor General Aug. 2014         3/3      Auditing

 Mr. Kealeboga       Accountant               Financial 

 Molelowatladi         General  May 2018         4/4      Reporting &   

                  Corporate Gov.

 Mr. Kenneth 
 Mabote         ACCA   Dec. 2014         2/3      Auditing

 Mr Pyoka Mfuni      AAT   Aug. 2014         4/4      Financial 

                  Reporting &  

                  Corporate Gov.

 Mr. Mbusi M. 
 Ndebele         CIMA   Oct. 2018         1/2      Auditing

 Mr Eugene          Specialist               Finacial 
 Mwaba         Knowledge Nov. 2018          0/4 **      Reporting & 
                  Corporate Gov.

 Tertiary          Tertiary

Institutions            Institutions  Aug. 2014

Legend
** Mr. Eugene Mwaba’s co-option to the Financial Reporting and Corporate Governance Working 
Group was ratified by the SSC at their last meeting of the year in November 2018.
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FAREWELL REMARKS TO MR. PYOKA MFUNI

I would like to thank Mr. Pyoka Mfuni for his tremendous contributions to this Committee’s activities 
throughout the years. He has been a member of this Committee from its inception in 2014, until he 
resigned in December 2018. He also served as the Chairperson of the Financial Reporting and 
Corporate Governance Working Group. 
 
GRATITUDE

I wish to thank my fellow Committee members for their valuable contributions; the BAOA Board for 
their guidance; the Chief Executive Officer and his Management Team for providing appropriate 
secretarial support that made our work manageable in 2018.

Lynette Armstrong
Chairperson
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ZOË A. ISAACS
Vice-Chairperson

EMMA A. PELOETLETSE 
Chairperson

MENDEL N. NLANDA 
Member

LEBOGANG MPINANG 
Member

DAVIS TELE
Member

VINCENT MOLEFE 
Member

KENEILWE SENYARELO
Member

EUGENE MWABA
Member

AUBREY CHEWE 
Member

NOT IN PICTURE: CLEOPHAS SAMUSODZA-Member    |   OTHUSITSE SIELE-Member
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The Education and Training Committee (ETC) is one of the five statutory Committees of the Board 
established in accordance with Section 16(1) of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 (the Act). 

MANDATE

The main role of the Committee is to:

a) Look at the broader national training requirements of the Accountancy and Auditing 
 profession in Botswana that meet the skills needs in the economy. The mandate covers the  
 entire supply chain starting at pre-school, primary and secondary school, through tertiary  
 (including Universities), and professional levels; in collaboration with the Human Resource   
 Development Council (HRDC) and other relevant stakeholders;

b) Create a National Accounting Education and Training Master Plan that has to be adhered to  
 by stakeholders including professional accountancy organisations and tuition providers across  
 the country using international standards as the benchmark. It is paramount that the mandate  
 of the Committee is reconciled to the mandate of the Human Resource Development Council  
 to ensure congruence of the agendas of these two-important national human resource   
 development based endeavours; and

c) Monitor compliance with International Standards and Codes, issued by International 
 Federation of Accountants (IFAC) and International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

a) Development of the Making of an Accountant 2 Video

 After viewing the BICA Career Video on “the making of an Accountant” the Committee   
 observed that while the video was well presented and documented, it did not pay particular  
 attention to sensitisation of the profession at the grass roots level targeting the child at the  
 initial stages of a child at family and basic education levels.  It was, therefore, resolved that  
 the new Career Video should be revisited to consider and strengthen the apparent weakness  
 at the lower levels.  The Committee also observed that the Video was good at the later stages  
 of the making of an accountant, particularly at Institutes of Higher Learning.

 The project should have been undertaken in 2018 but due to unavailability of funds, the   
 project was postponed to 2019. The Committee also resolved to look for corporate 
 sponsorships and from the Professional Accountancy Organisations (PAOs). Sponsorship   
 requests have since been sent out and the Committee is pleased to state that the Botswana  
 Institute of Chartered Accountants (BICA) has already made a contribution.

 The Committee intends to coordinate Professional Accountancy Organisations (PAOs) and  
 Botswana Association of Private Tertiary Education Providers (BAPTEP) career fairs and utilise  
 them to roll out the new video.

b) Monitoring of Professional Accountancy Organisations (PAOs)

 The Committee resolved to monitor Professional Accountancy Organisations (PAOs) as they  
 impact on the country irrespective of where the qualification originates. The Committee 
 therefore developed a questionnaire that was sent to PAOs in order to collect information. The  
 information obtained would then be used to review the curricula of accounting and 
 accounting related programmes to ensure that they have important elements such as 
 compliance with the following:
     
  i) International Financial Reporting Standards;
  ii) International Standards on Auditing;
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b) Monitoring of Professional Accountancy Organisations (PAOs) (continued)

  iii) Code of ethics for professional accountants;
  iv) International Public-Sector Accounting Standards; and
  v) International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions.

The Committee will also monitor tuition providers of professional qualifications to ensure that the 
accredited tuition providers comply with the approved standards of performance.

The required information was collected in 2018 from all PAOs and will be reviewed by the Committee in 
2019.

ATTENDANCE REGISTER

Key:       -  Present
           A - Apologies
 N - No longer a member
 N/A - Appointed after the meeting

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I wish to express my sincere appreciation and gratitude to the members of the Education and Training 
Committee and the Secretariat for their contributions in the achievement of the mandate of the  
Committee.

Emma A. Peloetletse
Chairperson

  MEETING DATE 

No. Co mm ittee  Member 
 

09 March
2018
 

 
31 May

2018
 16 Nov

2018 
Total 

 
 

   
Ms Emm a A . Peloetletse Jul. 20141.

Mr Mendel N. Nlanda Dec. 2014 3/3

2/3

3/3

3/3

3/3

2/3

1/3

2/3

1/3

1/3

3/3

2.

Ms Zoe Isaacs Oct. 2017 A

A

A

N

A

3.

Mr Aubrey Chewe Jul. 20164.

Mr Davis Tele Jul. 20165.

Ms Lebogang Mpinang Jul. 20166.

Mr Eugene Mwaba Jun. 20177.

Mr Othusitse Siele Aug. 20178.

Ms Keneilwe Senyarelo Mar. 20189.

Mr Cleophas Samusodza Aug. 2018 N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

10.

Mr Vincent Molefe Jun. 201811.

Date of 
App ointment

Page 63 0f 117



HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

The Human Resource Committee (HRC), although not a statutory committee as per the Financial 
Reporting Act, 2010 (the Act), was established through Section 16(1) of the Act, which stipulates that 
the Board of the Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority (the Authority) may, for the purposes of 
performing its functions, establish such committees as it considers appropriate; and may delegate, to 
any such committee, any of its functions as it considers necessary.  

MANDATE

The mandate of the Committee is to assist the Board in the oversight of the Human Resources function 
of the Authority, including the following: 

a) review and ensure effective implementation of, and compliance with, the Authority’s Human  
 Resources philosophies, policies, succession plans, compensation and benefit plans, and   
 programs in accordance with the Authority’s corporate strategy;
b) come up with Human Resources goals and objectives; and evaluate the performance of Senior  
 Executive Officers against these goals and objectives;
c) advise on the compensation to be awarded to employees; and
d) provide guidance to the Board on the implementation of the Human Resources Strategy.

ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

a) Talent Management Strategy

The Talent Management Strategy was developed as a multi–year strategy for achieving the desired 
state of people management within the Authority, to support the Authority’s long–term priorities and 
objectives by fostering employee growth and development, encouraging on–going feedback on 
performance and promoting leadership at all levels.

The Strategy recognises the benefits of having a committed, capable and skilled workforce that is 
focused on achieving the short and long–term priorities, strategies and objectives. It also represents a 
process through which the Authority can identify and attach real service enhancements.

Several policies were developed in order to facilitate the smooth implementation of the Talent 
Management Strategy and they include the following:

I. Succession Planning Policy:  The Policy was developed to ensure depth of competencies exist, 
especially in key management, leadership and technical positions where skills are both critical and 
scarce. Pro-active and deliberate planning was necessary to ensure that the Authority can sustain 
effective continuity where incumbents in key positions vacate posts.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (CONTINUED) 
HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE (HRC)

THAPELO TSHEOLE  
Vice-Chairperson

KENEILWE R. MORRIS  
Chairperson

ZOË A. ISAACS
Member
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I. Succession Planning Policy: (continued)
 
 The Authority developed the Technical Department’s Succession Plan and it is currently being 
 implemented. The succession plan for the Finance and Administration Department as well as  
 that of the Chief Executive Officer is in progress and will be finalised in 2019.

II. Attraction and Retention Policy: The Policy focuses on both attracting suitably qualified 
 professionals whose skills are in demand in the employment market to join the Authority    
 through focused recruitment strategies and keeping those who are already employed,   
 especially those whose skills are crucial to the success of the Organisation.

iv. Training and Development Policy and Procedures:  The Policy ensures that all employees are  
 equipped with the necessary knowledge, skills and competencies that allow them to carry out  
 their current duties with maximum effectiveness and efficiency, in pursuit of the vision and  
 mission of the Authority.

b) Communication

 The Authority’s communication strategy intends to improve communication within the Authority  
 by ensuring that there is a development of targeted information and guidance to address  
 critical issues, findings and trends as well as improving operational excellence and leverage  
 strategic partnerships through instituting forums for sharing information and promoting 
 cooperation.

 A number of meetings were held across the Authority in 2018 including General Staff Meetings,  
 Departmental Meetings and Executive and Management Meetings to share valuable
 information and improve operational excellence. These give employees the opportunity to  
 engage fully on issues of strategy execution as well as on operational matters.

 Supervisors also held numerous one-on-one meetings throughout the year to address 
 performance issues, share information, as well as offer support and guidance to subordinates.  

c) Annual Newsletter

 Publication of the annual Newsletter continued for the second year in a row. This is essential for  
 the Authority to promote a culture of effective communication within and outside the office. It  
 is a clear and transparent communication mechanism used to have effective and meaningful 
 communication with employees and other key stakeholders.

d) Staffing

 The Authority closed the year with a full staff complement of twenty-four (24) employees.   
 Ninety-five percent (95%) of staff are citizens and five percent (5%) (representing one staff  
 member) are non-citizens. Sixty-eight percent (67%) are female and thirty-three percent (33%)  
 are male. 
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e) Staff Turnover

The Authority has over the years managed to maintain acceptable levels of staff turnover. The staff 
turnover in 2015 was 5% and in 2016 and 2017 it was zero. Resignations were significantly reduced due 
to the human resource policies and procedures that were developed and implemented. However, the 
turnover rose in 2018 to 12% (including end of contract termination). The Authority is however 
committed to reduce the turnover rate and maintain lower turnover rates in future.

f) Staff Training and Development

The Training and Development Policy and Procedures provides a robust framework for a continuous 
learning and development to improve competencies and retain staff. As such, the Authority is 
committed to providing excellent training and development opportunities for its employees, which 
meet the operational and strategic objectives of the organisation as well as individuals’ own learning 
aspirations and needs.

The Authority also encourages employees to take responsibility for their training and development and 
continually improve their skills and knowledge through part-time private studies. A reward scheme has 
also been implemented to reward employees for successfully undertaking part time studies in an 
attempt to encourage them to self-develop. Employees have since benefited from the reward 
scheme.
 
The Authority has continued to develop its small but strategic staff in order to close competency gaps 
for better performance. During the period under review, the Authority provided training on 
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), corporate governance and International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) 9 and IFRS 15 to the Technical Department staff and Accountants to equip 
them with the required skills. 
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (CONTINUED)  
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE (FAC)

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Finance and Audit Committee (the Committee), is pleased to present its report for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2018. The Committee operates within defined terms of reference as set out 
in its Charter and the authority delegated to it by the Board. 

In the year under review the Board resolved to split the Finance, Audit and Tender Committee into two 
Committees namely; Finance and Audit Committee and Tender Committee.

The Finance and Audit Committee is not one of the statutory committees as per Section 16 (2) of the 
Financial Reporting Act, 2010 (the Act), but it was established through Section 16(1) of the Act, which 
stipulates that the Board of the Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority (the Authority) may, for the 
purposes of performing its functions, establish such committees as it considers appropriate; and may 
delegate, to any such committee, any of its functions as it considers necessary.

PURPOSE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

In carrying out its duties and responsibilities delegated to it by the Board, the Committee promotes the 
highest standard of Corporate Governance as recommended in King III. During the year under review 
the Committee provided oversight over the following: 

a) The integrity of the Authority’s financial statements and any formal reports relating to the 
 Authority’s financial performance, reviewing significant financial reporting judgments 
 contained therein, the appropriateness, relevance and reliability of operational and financial  
 reporting; 
b) Compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements; 
c) Independent Auditors’ independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process;  
d) The Authority’s system of quality control, intended to ensure that systems are relevant, 
 adequate and operating effectively to enable the Authority to meet its objectives; 
e) Management Accounts which provide useful information for decision making;
f) Cost monitoring and control;
g) Cashflow management; 
h) Capacity of the available resources including staffing to deliver in accordance with the 
 Committee Charter;
i) Risk management; and 
j) Internal Audit reviews as performed by the Technical Team.

Committee also evaluated the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s accounting practices, 
information systems, budgeting and budgetary control systems, and auditing processes used by the 
Authority in the day to day management of its business.

OAITSE M. RAMASEDI
Vice-Chairperson

DANIEL N. LOETO   
Chairperson

EMMA A. PELOETLETSE 
 Member
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PURPOSE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE (continued)

On financial statements and disclosure matters, the Committee reviewed and discussed with 
Management Quarterly Management Accounts providing financial information that assists the Board 
in decision making, prior to their presentation to the Board; ensuring that the Management Accounts 
provide comparisons against budgets and/or prior years, and explanations for significant variances.  

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

a) Revenue base

Section 60 of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 states that the revenues of the Authority shall consist of:

i) Such monies as may be appropriated by the National Assembly;
ii) Fees that the Authority may charge for services it may render to Public Interest Entities and their  
 auditors;
iii) Money paid in respect of fines imposed by the Authority under the Act;
iv) Grants and donations that the Authority may receive;
v) Income that the Authority may receive from investments, rentals, sale of land and buildings; and 
vi) Such other sources as may be approved by the Government.

The main source of income of the Authority for 2018 was the Government subvention at seventy five 
percent (75%).  However, revenue received from the rendering of services has increased by six percent 
(6%) and these have contributed to the Authority’s main income stream. The Authority still envisages 
some growth in this area as stakeholders are gradually becoming aware of its mandate and services 
and with the downward review of thresholds, more companies would be eligible to register as PIEs 
because the current thresholds eliminate many of these companies from registration.

Analysis o f Revenue
P 

2018
P 

2017 Movement

A. Government Subvention 14,081,300        13,300,000 6%

B. Revenue Earned From Servi ce s

Certified Auditors 302,000             293,000       3%

Audit Firms for PIEs 25,000               26,000         (4%)

Parastatals 617,400             667,600       (8%)

Professional Accountancy Bodies 32,900               29,600         11%

BICA Audit Quality Reviews 145,000             135,000       7%

PIEs Registered under section 22 (a) 968,800             861,300       12%

Banks Sections 22 (b) 579,000             708,200       (18%)

PIEs Regulated by NBFIRA Section 22 (c) 1, 285,500          999,100       29%

PIEs Registered under section 22 (d) 829,000             773,000       7%

Total 4,784,600         4,492,800   6%

C. Other  Inco me 28,200               8,900           258%

D. Interest  Inco me 29,400               177,200       (83%)
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Sources of Income
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b) Key Financial Highlights

The Authority made a surplus of P292,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to a 
deficit of P473,600 in 2017. Total operating expenses have increased by 1% from 2017 to P18.6 million.

Overall total revenue increased by 6% from the previous year. The surplus of P292,000 recorded in the 
current year was mainly due to the increase in revenue earned from Public Interest Entities and less staff 
costs incurred during the year.

FUNDING AND INDEPENDENCE

The Authority continues to be a recipient of Government Subvention and anticipates this to continue 
into the foreseeable future. Empirical evidence has shown that continued Government support is 
desirable as it goes a long way towards achieving the desired regulatory independence of the 
regulator from the entities that it oversees. However, over dependence on Government has its own 
challenges as Government has other competing national priorities. The approval of the Financial 
Reporting (Public Interest Entities) Regulations, 2016 has opened another source of revenue for the 
Authority through the registration of public interest entities.

The diverse base of public interest entities as defined by Sections 22 and 56 of the Financial Reporting 
Act, 2010 ensures that the Authority’s continued independence from the entities it oversees is 
maintained.

OTHER ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR:
 
a) Review of the Section (22) thresholds and Fees

The Authority receives seventy five percent (75%) of its revenue as Government subvention while twenty 
five percent (25%) is received from the PIEs, Auditors and Audit firms for services provided to them. The 
Authority anticipates that by revising the thresholds, most PIEs would be regulated and 
consequently the Authority would be on its way to gain its financial autonomy. The revised thresholds 
have been approved by the Board and submitted to the Minister of Finance and Economic 
Development for approval.

Income
P18.9mn

Surplus
P292k

Expenses
P18.6mn

2017 2018
Government Subvention

Revenue frim services rendered

Other Income

Government Subvention

Revenue frim services rendered

Other Income

25% 25%

75%
74%

1% 0%

Page 70 0f 117



COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (CONTINUED)  
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE (FAC) (CONTINUED)

b) Impairment of Bureau De Change Balance

This category of income was assessed to be impaired during the financial year. The Authority undertook 
a prudent approach and recognised a 100% impairment charge of P991,000 in the income statement 
relating to the probability of non -recoverability of this balance.

c) Internal Audit Function

Following the Board resolution that the size of the Authority does not warrant a fully-fledged 
Independent Audit Department and that this function would continue to be done under the auspices 
of the Corporate Governance Section of the Technical Department until the issue is revisited in a 
couple of years’ time, during the year an audit exercise was undertaken and the report was issued to 
the Chairperson of the Finance and Audit Committee.

d) IT Section

The reliance of the Authority on information technology as a business enabler continues to grow 
annually. This reliance requires that the Authority continues to be more disciplined in the basic tasks of 
Cybersecurity management such as vulnerability scanning, patch management, application security, 
and more. It further requires that the Authority continues to be more proficient in executing the IT 
Strategy, more especially in the areas of cloud computing and securing the mobility of computing 
resources. It thus follows that, for the year under review, the Authority pursued issues of Cybersecurity 
more than ever before and the Authority will continue to be more vigilant and proactive in ensuring 
the security of its computing resources.

The Authority continued to maintain Service Level Agreements (SLA) with third-party service providers 
for critical systems. These include SLAs with disaster recovery site, business continuity site, 
telecommunications service providers, and security services.

The IT section continues to work closely with proprietary solutions providers for the maintenance of 
business systems for payroll, accounting and other automated business processes.
The Authority has not experienced any security incidents in the year under review. 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The FAC met four times during 2018. The attendance register is presented below:

Key:              - Present  A-Apologies

GRATITUDE

I wish to thank my fellow Committee members for their valuable contributions and the Board for its 
guidance; the Chief Executive Officer, his Management team and staff of the Authority for providing 
appropriate professional advice and secretarial support that made our work manageable. 

Daniel N. Loeto
Chairperson
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EXECUTIVE STAFF

Mr Duncan Majinda is the current CEO of Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority (BAOA). His 
accountancy career started when he qualified as an Accounting Technician in 1984. Using his AAT to 
launch his career, he completed ACCA in 1990 and went on to do his MBA (Finance) at the University 
of Manchester in England.  His past employers are Ministry of Local Government and Lands, 
Department of Local Government Audit, Anglo American Corporation, Deloitte and Touche, Bank of 
Botswana and the Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants (BICA). He went through the ranks from 
Accounts Clerk to Accounts Supervisor, to Finance Manager before he joined BICA and BAOA as CEO. 

Duncan has served in several past and current Directorships including Botswana Accountancy College; 
Botswana Stock Exchange (Treasurer); Mascom; Botswana Institute of Accountants; Stockholm 
International School in Sweden (Audit Committee Chairman); Botswana Institute of Internal Audit 
(Founding President); Companies and Intellectual Property Authority (CIPA) (Audit Committee 
Chairman); Grand De Luxe Investment and Consulting Company; and Tlotlo Hotel and Conference 
Center (Chairman).

DUNCAN D. MAJINDA
Chief Executive Officer
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Mr Innocent Munjanja is an Audit, Accounting and Finance Professional with over 20 years work 
experience in areas of Audit, Financial Reporting and Finance. He has worked for two of the big four 
audit firms in the world being KPMG (Mozambique) and the now EY (Botswana) up to Senior Audit 
Manager level for over 8 years.

In industry and commerce, Innocent has worked at various levels up to Chief Finance Officer level. He 
is passionate about Financial Reporting and Audit and has trained many companies and presented in 
public workshops on topical areas in International Financial Reporting Standards and Corporate 
Governance.

Mr Munjanja holds a Master of Accounting Science postgraduate degree from the University of South 
Africa, an Honours Bachelor of Accounting Science from the University of South Africa and an Honours 
Bachelor of Accountancy from the University of Zimbabwe. He has over 17 years post qualification 
experience with the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and the Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA). Over the years, he has acquired extensive practical 
experience in auditing from the great part of the industry sectors including insurance companies, 
banks, mines, manufacturing and service industries. Mr Munjanja has worked in three Southern African 
Countries including Mozambique and Zimbabwe and more than half of his working life has been in 
Botswana.

EXECUTIVE STAFF (CONTINUED)

INNOCENT MUNJANJA
Director, Technical
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT: Ephifania Nkanga, Thapelo Otukile, Lame Obotseng, Motlatsi Mmusi, 
            Boitumelo V. Raditladi, Lesego Pheto and Patrick Jansen 
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TECHNICAL DEPARTMENT REPORT

MANDATE OF THE TECHNICAL DEPARTMENT

The Technical Department is responsible for the provision of oversight to accounting and auditing 
services and promotion of the standard, quality and credibility of providing financial and 
non-financial information by entities, including Public Interest Entities (PIEs), through standard setting, 
financial reporting monitoring, audit practice reviews, corporate governance reviews, enforcement 
of compliance and oversight over Professional Accounting Organisations.

The functions of the Authority in respect of the above are performed by qualified professional staff 
employed on a full-time basis. As at the end of 2018, the Technical Department had nine (9) full time 
professional staff. 

The work undertaken by the Department in 2018 in fulfilling the above mandate is provided below.

WORK UNDERTAKEN THROUGH SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

In assisting in the fulfilment of the Authority’s mandate, the Department undertakes the required 
review work, presents reports to the Board subcommittees with appropriate recommendations for the 
subcommittees’ consideration. The Board subcommittees then review the Department’s reports and 
in turn make recommendations to the Board for their final decision.

PROVISION OF SECRETARIAL SERVICES TO BOARD SUBCOMMITTEES

During the year, the Technical Department provided secretarial services to the Audit Practice Review 
Committee, Financial Reporting Monitoring Committee and Standards Setting Committee.

PARTICIPATION IN INTERNATIONAL FORUM OF INDEPENDENT AUDIT REGULATORS (IFIAR) IFIAR PROJECTS

The Authority is a member of IFIAR, the global body of Audit Regulators and actively participates in the 
Forum’s activities. 

Mandate  Responsible Board Sub-Committee  
  

Audit Practice Reviews  Audit Practice Review Committee  
 

Financial Reporting Monitoring & Corporate
Governance

 
 

Financial Reporting Monitoring
Committee    

 

 

Standards Setting  Standards Setting Committee   
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 TECHNIICAL STAFF

Left to Right:  Lesego Pheto, Neo Kwape, Mpho Rabakane, Patience Habana, Innocent Munjanja,
          Boitumelo Rabatshabeng, Keotshepile Monepe, Lame Obotseng, Ephifania Nkanga

           
 

Page 76 0f 117



FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT REPORT 

The Finance and Administration Department provides support services to the whole Organisation.   It 
deals with matters relating to finance and auditing, procurement, administration, legal, information 
technology, strategy, risk management and human resource management.

The detailed activities of the Department are well covered in the respective reports of Finance and 
Audit Committee; Education and Training Committee; and Human Resources Committee which are 
part of this Annual Report.

The Authority participated and ran three other successful events during the year respectively:
a) Botswana 50+2 Independence Celebration (BOT50+2);
b) Media brief;and
c) 2018 Botswana Consumer Fair. 

The Authority also signed MoUs with CIPA and PEEPA during the year.

BAOA participated in 50th +2 Independence 
Celebration on 30th September 2018

BAOA Media Brief

Signing of MoU with PEEPASigning of MoU with CIPA

BAOA Board and Management during the 
BAOA Mid Term Strategy review

BAOA Stall at the 2018 
Botswana 

Consumer fair 

BAOA Board Chairperson 
briefing the Media
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FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT STAFF

(FRONT ROW) Left to Right: Kelebogile Kereng, Yvonne Mmotlanyane, Boitumelo V. Raditladi

(SECOND ROW) Left to Right: Blessed Seretse, Daniel Keleketu, Motlatsi Mmusi, Thulaganyo Molemi,  
               Dorcas Tjizoo

(BACK ROW) Left to Right: Olebeletse Mokone, Patrick Jansen, Itumeleng Selebalakhai, 
         Thapelo Otukile
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CERTIFIED AUDITORS AND AUDIT FIRMS OF 
     PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs)

Section 24 of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 (the Act) states that notwithstanding anything 
contained in the Companies Act, or any other law, a person shall not hold any appointment, or offer 
any services for remuneration, as a Certified Auditor of Public Interest Entity (PIE), unless he or she is 
registered by the Authority as a Certified Auditor of PIE under this Act, while Section 25 of the Act 
states that “An audit firm shall not practise or provide audit services to a public interest entity, unless 
such firm is registered with the Authority’’.

Pursuant to the foregoing, the following Certified Auditors and Audit Firms of Public Interest Entities (PIEs) 
are registered with the Authority as of 31st December 2018:

CERTIFIED FIRM REGISTRATION
NUMBER 

REGISTRATION
NUMBER  

CERTIFIED AUDITOR 
 

Pricewaterhouse
Coopers  

FAP 001  Butler Phirie
Rudi Binedell
Anton Sheyan Edirisinghe
Siddihalu Kosala Wijesena
Lalithkumar Mahesan
Rian V. Schalkwyk

 

 

 

CAP 001
CAP 003
CAP 004 
CAP 0025
CAP 0031
CAP 0033  

 
 
 

 
 

Deloitte & Touche  FAP 002  Massimo Marinelli
Frederik Christian Els
Pragnaben Naik
Cecilia Veeta Ramatlapeng
Kyuchukova-Troanska Evgeniya
Magritha Juanita Wootherspoon

 

 
 
 

CAP 005
CAP 006 
CAP 007 
CAP 008 
CAP 0026
CAP 0032  

 
 
 

 
 

 
Ernst & Young  FAP 003  Bakani Ndwapi

Thomas Nyasha Chitambo
 

 
CAP 0010
CAP 0011

 
 

KPMG FAP 004  Anthony Gerard Devlin
Francois Roos

 
 

CAP 0012
CAP 0013  

 
 

Grant Thornton  FAP 005  Dinesh Radhakrihna Mallan
Aswin Vaidyanathan
Madhavan Venkatachary

 

 

CAP 0015
CAP 0016 
CAP 0017  

 

 
 

IAMS FAP 006  Kandiah Rajadurai SriDaran
Dayani SriDaran 

 
 

CAP 0018
CAP 0019  

 
 

Mazars  FAP 007  Madhu Menon Kalathil
Shashikumar Velambath

 
 

CAP 0020
CAP 0022  

 
 

RSM Botswana  FAP 008  Gurusubrahmaniyan Gurumoorthi
Prosper Vavariro Muonde

 
 

CAP 0023
CAP 0024 

 
 

 
Goel & Associates  FAP 009  Sanjay Goel

Shekhar Goel 
 

 
CAP 0027
CAP 0028  

 
 

 
BDO FAP 0010  Christopher John Bray

Donovan Van Der Vyver  
CAP 0029
CAP 0030  
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     PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs)

For purposes of providing oversight over auditors, professional accountancy bodies and generally with 
regard to the accounting and auditing profession, the functions and powers of the Authority shall be to 
register Public 
Interest Entities(PIEs).
 
Pursuant to Regulation 4 of the Financial Reporting (Public Interest Entities) Regulations, 2016, the 
following Public Interest Entities are registered with the Authority as of 31st December 2018:

LISTED ON BOTSWANA STOCK EXCHANGE EXCLUDING LISTED BANKS

!  Name o f Entity  Registration Number  

1 Engen Botswana Limited  BSE 001 

2 Letlole La Rona Limited  BSE 002 

3 Imara Holdings Limited  BSE 003 

4 Afinitas Limited  BSE 004 

5 Botswana Insurance Holdings Limited  BSE 005 

6 Choppies Enterprises Limited  BSE 006 

7 Botswana Telecommunications Limited  BSE 007 

8 Chobe Holdings Limited  BSE 008  

9 Cresta Marakanelo Limited  BSE 009  

10  Furnmart Limited  BSE 0010 

11  G4S (Botswana) Limited  BSE 0011 

12  Letshego Holdings Limited  BSE 0012 

13  New African Properties Limited  BSE 0013 

14  Sechaba Holdings Limited  BSE 0014 

15  Turnstar Holdings Limited  BSE 0015 

16  Wilderness Holdings Limited  BSE 0016 

17  RDC Properties Limited  BSE 0017 

18  Sefalana Holding Limited  BSE 0018 

19  The Far Property Company Limited  BSE 0019 

20  CA Sales & Distribution Limited  BSE 0020 

21  A-Cap Resources Limited  BSE 0021 

22  Lucara Diamond Corp.  BSE 0022 

23  PrimeTime Property Holdings  BSE 0023 

24  Minergy Limited  BSE 0024 

25  Botswana Diamonds Plc Limited  BSE 0025 

26  Anglo American Plc  BSE 0026 

27  Shumba Energy  BSE 0027 
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PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs) (CONTINUED)

ENTITIES SUPERVISED BY BANK OF BOTSWANA

 Name of Entity  Registration Number  

1  Capital Bank Limited  BoB 001  

2  Bank of India  BoB 002  

3  Bank SBI Botswana Limited  BoB 003  

4  Bank of Baroda  BoB 004  

5  First National Bank of Botswana Limited BoB 005  

6  Bank Gaborone Limited  BoB 006  

7  Rennies Foreign Exchange Proprietary Limited  BoB 007  
8  African Banking Corporation of Botswana Limited  BoB 008  

9  Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited  BoB 009  

10  Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited  BoB 0010  

11  Standard Chartered Bank Limited BoB 0011  

12  UAE Exchange  BoB 0012  

13  Gorogang Bureau de Change  BoB 0013  

14  Tshilong Bureau de Change  BoB 0014  

15  TLR Money Link Bureau de Change  BoB 0015  

16  Sunny Bureau de Change  BoB 0016  

17  Silver Bureau de Change  BoB 0017  

18  Proxy Bureau de Change  BoB 0018  

19  Ozair Bureau de Change  BoB 0019  

20  Macheng Bureau de Change  BoB 0020  

21  Boitekanelo Bureau de Change  BoB 0021  

22  Sherwood Bureau de change  BoB 0022  

23  Garona Foreign Exchange Bureau de Change  BoB 0023  

24  Mochudi Bureau de Change  BoB 0024  

25  Master Bureau de Change  BoB 0025  

26  Limpopo Bureau de change  BoB 0026   

27  Border Forex  BoB 0027  

28  Andy & Esi Bureau de change  BoB 0028  
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PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs) (CONTINUED)

ENTITIES SUPERVISED BY THE NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS REGULATORY AUTHORITY
 
 

Name of Entity  Registration Number  

1 Botswana Insurance Company Limited  NBF 001  

2 Motswedi Securities (Proprietary) Limited NBF 002  

3 First Reinsurance Company (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 003  

4 Zurich Insurance Company Botswana Limited   NBF 004  

5 Afritec (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 005  

6 Aon Risk (Proprietary) Limited   NBF 006  

7 Metropolitan Life (Proprietary) Limited NBF 007  

8 Dynamic Insurance Brokers (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 008  

9 Stanlib Investment Management (Proprietary) Limited NBF 009  

10 Regent Life Botswana Limited  NBF 0010  

11 Botswana Stock Exchange Limited  NBF 0011  

12 Norsad Finance Limited  NBF 0012  

13 Bona Life Insurance (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 0013  

14 Alexander Forbes Botswana Group Holdings Limited NBF 0014  

15 Kalahari Insurance Brokers (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 0015  

16 Kebonang Holdings (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0016  

17 AON Botswana (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0017  

18 Phoenix of Botswana Assurance Co. (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0018  

19 GetBucks (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0019  

20 Kgori Capital (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0020  

21 Liberty Life Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 0021  

22 First Sun Alliance (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0022  

23 Penrich Insurance Brokers (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0023  

24 Bank Gaborone Insurance Agency (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 0024  
25 FMRE Property and Casualty (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 0025  

26 Investec Asset Management Botswana Limited NBF 0026  

27 Botswana Public Officers Pension Fund  NBF 0027  

28 Sesiro Insurance (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0028  

29 Marsh Botswana (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0029  

30 Hollard Life Botswana Limited  NBF 0030 

31 Imara Holdings Limited  NBF 0031  

32 Hollard Insurance (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0032  

33 Bayport Financial Services  NBF 0033  

34 Old Mutual Short-Term Insurance (Botswana) Limited  NBF 0034  

35 Old Mutual Life Insurance Company (Botswana) 
(Proprietary) Limited

 NBF 0035  

36 Continental Reinsurance Company Limited  NBF 0036  

37 Alpha Direct Insurance Company (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 0037  

38 Botswana Housing Corporation Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0038  

39 Botswana Ash Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0039  

40 Alexander Forbes Individual Member Pension Fund NBF 0040  
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PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs) (CONTINUED)

ENTITIES SUPERVISED BY THE NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS REGULATORY AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)

         
Name of Entity Registration Number

41 African Alliance Botswana Securities Limited  NBF 0041  

42 Alexander Forbes Financial Services Botswana Limited  NBF 0042  

43 Alexander Forbes Asset Consultants (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 0043  

44 Botswana Life Insurance Limited  NBF 0044  

45 Botswana Insurance Fund Management  NBF 0045  

46 Legal Guard  NBF 0046  

47 Botswana Insurance Fund Management Unit Trusts  NBF 0047  

48 Allan Gray Botswana Limited  NBF 0048  

49 StockBrokers Botswana Limited  NBF 0049  

50 Investec Fund Managers Botswana (Proprietary) Limited   NBF 0050  

51 Barclays Bank Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0051  

52 First National Bank Pension Fund  NBF 0052  

53 Alexander Forbes Retired Fund  NBF 0053  

54 Water Utilities Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0054  

55 Kgalagadi Breweries Limited Pension Fund  NBF 0055  

56 BURS Pension Fund  NBF 0056  

57 BBS Pension Fund  NBF 0057  

58 Debswana Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0058  

59 Stanbic Bank Botswana Pension Fund  NBF 0059  

62 Civil Aviation Authority Botswana Staff Pension Fund NBF 0060  

61 Ipro (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited NBF 0061  

62 Africa Fifty-Three Provident Fund  NBF 0062  

63 Botswana Telecommunications Limited Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0063  

65 Botswana Examinations Council Pension Fund  NBF 0064  

65 G4S Limited Pension Fund  NBF 0065  

66 Local Enterprise Authority Pension Fund  NBF 0066  

67 BPOMAS NBF 0067  

68 PULA Medical Aid  NBF 0068  

69 Ernst & Young Pension Fund  NBF 0069  

70 National Development Bank Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0070  

71 BIHL Defined Contribution Retirement Fund  NBF 0071  

72 Bank of Botswana DC Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0072  

73 BUIST Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0073  

74 Engen Botswana Retirement Fund  NBF 0074  

75 Deloitte & Touche Pension Fund  NBF 0075  

76 Botswana Telecommunications Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0076  

77 Botswana Power Corporation Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0077  

78 Mascom Wireless Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0078  

79 Total Pension Fund  NBF 0079  

80 Apex Retirement Fund  NBF 0080  

81 Puma Energy Pension Fund  NBF 0081  
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PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIES) (CONTINUED)

ENTITIES SUPERVISED BY THE NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS REGULATORY AUTHORITY(CONTINUED)

Name of Entity Registration Number

82 Fleming Asset Management Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 0082 

83 Bomaid/Southview Group Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0083 

84 Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contribution  NBF 0084 

85 UB Pension Fund  NBF 0085 

86 Standard Chartered Bank Pension Fund  NBF 0086 

87 BMC Pension Fund  NBF 0087 

88 Sentlhaga Pension Fund  NBF 0088 

89 Millennium Retirement Fund  NBF 0089 

90 Sefalana Group Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0090 

91 Botswana Insurance Company Retirement Fund  NBF 0091 

92 Motor Vehicle Accident Retirement Fund  NBF 0092 

93 Botswana Railways Staff Pension Fund  NBF 0093 

94 Maru-a-pula School Staff Pension Fund NBF 0094  

95 Deferred Pensioners Pension Fund  NBF 0095 

96 Foreign Service Nationals Retirement Fund  NBF 0096 

97 Majwe Minning Provident Fund  NBF 0097 

98 Vivo Energy Pension Fund  NBF 0098 

99 Botswana Agricultural Markerting Board Pension Fund  NBF 0099 

100 Botswana Post Staff Pension Fund  NBF 00100 

101 BOBS Staff Pension Fund  NBF 00101 

102 CEDA Staff Pension Fund  NBF 00102 

103 Metropolitan Pension Fund  NBF 00103 

104 Metropolitan Provident Fund  NBF 00104 

105 Orange Staff Pension Fund  NBF 00105 

106 Botsogo Health Plan (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 00106 

107 Barclays Life Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  NBF 00107 

108 Air Botswana Pension Fund  NBF 00108 

109 BDC Contributory Staff Pension Fund  NBF 00109 

110 Apostolic Faith Mission Pension Fund  NBF 00110 

111 BSB Staff Pension Fund  NBF 00111 

112 Glenrand M.I.B Pension Fund  NBF 00112 

113 Hollard Insurance Botswana Pension Fund  NBF 00113 

114 Botswana Telecommunication Authority Staff Fund  NBF 00114 

115 Aon Botswana Preservation Fund  NBF 00115 

116 Botswana Vaccine Institute Pension Fund  NBF 00116 

117 IDM Pension Fund  NBF 00117 

118 NAFTEC Pension Fund  NBF 00118 

119 BCL Staff Pension Fund  NBF 00119  

120 BOMAID  NBF 00120 

121 BOCODOL Staff Pension Fund  NBF 001 21 

122 Botswana Savings Bank Staff Pension Fund  NBF 00122 

123 Glenrand Orphans Fund  NBF 00123 

124 Aon Botswana Defined Contribution Fund  NBF 00124 
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PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs) (CONTINUED)

ENTITIES SUPERVISED BY THE NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS REGULATORY AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)

Name of Entity Registration Number
125 Stanlib Botswana Managed Prudential Fund  NBF 00125 

126 Stanlib Botswana Income Fund  NBF 00126 

127 Stanlib Botswana Equity Fund NBF 00127 

128 Stanlib Botswana Money Market  NBF 00128 

129 
African Alliance Botswana Management Company 
(Proprietary) Limited

 
 

NBF 00129 

 ENTITIES DETERMINED BY THE MINISTER
 

  Name o f Entity  Registration Number 

1 Woolworths (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited MIN 001  
2 Motovac (Proprietary) Limited MIN 002  

3 Morupule Coal Mine Limited  MIN 003  
4 Radical Investments (Proprietary) Limited MIN 004  

5 Motor Centre (Proprietary) Limited MIN 005  
6 Diamond Trading Company Botswana (Proprietary) 

Limited
  MIN 006  

7 Global Holdings Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 007  
8 CitySkapes (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 008  

9 Allied Investments (Proprietary) Limited MIN 009  
10 Bolux Group (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0010 

11 Trans Africa (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0011 
12 Kromberg& Schubert Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0012 

13 Tati Nickel Mining Company (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0013
14 Mupane Gold Mining (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0014  

15 Overseas Development Enterprises (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0015  
16 DeBeers Global Sightholder Sales (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0016  

17 Vivo Energy Botswana (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0017  
18 CA Sales and Distribution (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0018  

19 Lenmed Health Bokamoso Private Hospital  MIN 0019  
20 Mascom Wireless Botswana (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0020  

21 Naledi Motors (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0021  
22 Consolidated Group Contractors Sal  MIN 0022  

23 Boteti Mining (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0023  
24 Botswana Ash (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0024  

25 Kgalagadi Breweries (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0025  
26 FSG Limited MIN 0026  

27 Puma Energy (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0027  
28 Diamond Limited Company  MIN 0028  

29 Healthcare Management Services  MIN 0029  
30 Orange Botswana (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0030  

31 Pula Sales (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0031  
32 Clover Botswana (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0032  

33 Majwe Mining Joint Venture  MIN 0033  
34 J Haskins & Sons (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0034  

35 Barloworld (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0035  
36 Universal Builders (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0036   

37 Bokomo (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0037  
38 Retail Holdings Botswana (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0038 

39 M Suresh Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0039  
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PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs) (CONTINUED)

ENTITIES REQUIRED TO FILE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS WITH A GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENT OR 
AUTHORITY

Name of Entity Registration Number

ENTITIES DETERMINED BY THE MINISTER (CONTINUED)

40 Master Farmer Feed (Proprietary) Limited MIN 0040  

41 Khoemacau (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0041  

42 Unik Construction Engineering (Proprietary) Limited   MIN 0042  

43 Unitrans Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0043  

44 Diacore Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0044  

45 Komatsu Botswana (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0045  

46 Cash Bazaar Holdings (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0046  

47 Barloworld Equipment Botswana (Proprietary) Limited   MIN 0047  

48 Senn Foods (Proprietary) Limited   MIN 0048   

49 KGK Diamonds Botswana  MIN 0049  

50 Deci Investments (Proprietary) Limited  MIN 0050 

 Name of Entity  Registration Number 
1 Citizen Entrepreneurial Development Agency  PAR 001  
2 Botswana Bureau of Standards PAR 002  
3 Botswana National Sports Council  PAR 003  
4 Botswana Vaccine Institute  PAR 004  
5 Botswana Postal Services Limited PAR 005  
6 Gambling Authority  PAR 006  
7 University of Botswana  PAR 007   

8 Local Enterprise Authority PAR 008  
9 Botswana Communications Regulatory Authority  PAR 009  

10 Botswana Oil Limited PAR 0010 
11 Botswana Savings Bank PAR 0011 
12 Institute of Development Management  PAR 0012 
13 Botswana Building Society PAR 0013 
14 Botswana Meat Commission  PAR 0014 
15 Botswana Housing Corporation  PAR 0015 
16 Motor Vehicle Accident Fund  PAR 0016 
17 Competition Authority  PAR 0017 
18 Botswana Investment & Trade Centre  PAR 0018 
19 Public Procurement & Asset Disposal Board PAR 0019  

20 Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis PAR 0020 
21 Companies and Intellectual Property Authority  PAR 0021 
22 Debt Participation Capital Funding Limited  PAR 0022 
23

 
Botswana International University of Science and 
Technology  

PAR 0023
 

24 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana  PAR 0024 
25 Forest Conservation Botswana  PAR 0025 
26 Botswana Railways PAR 0026 
27 Air Botswana  PAR 0027 
28 National Food Technology Research Centre  PAR 0028 
29 Botswana Fibre Networks PAR 0029 
30 Bank of Botswana  PAR 0030 
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ENTITIES REQUIRED TO FILE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS WITH A GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENT OR 
AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)

PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITIES (PIEs) (CONTINUED)

Name of Entity Registration Number

31 Botswana Privatisation Asset Holdings  PAR 0031 

32 National Development Bank  PAR 0032 

33 Botswana National Productivity Centre  PAR 0033 

34 BOCODOL  PAR 0034 

35 Botswana Qualifications Authority  PAR 0035 

36 SPEDU  PAR 0036 

37 Wa ter Utilities Corporation  PAR 0037 

38 Minerals Development Company Botswana  PAR 0038 

39 Botswana Agricultural Marketing Board  PAR 0039 

40 Botswana Power Corporation  PAR 0040 

41 Engineers Registration Board  PAR 0041 

42 Quantity Surveyors Registration Council  PAR 0042 

43 Botswana Examinations Council  PAR 0043 

44 Okavango Diamond Company  PAR 0044 

45 Legal Aid Botswana  PAR 0045 

46 Botswana Development Corporation  PAR 0046 

47 Construction Industry Trust Fund  PAR 0047 

48 Botswana Tourism Organisation  PAR 0048 

49 Human Resource Development Council  PAR 0049 

50 Botswana Accountancy College  PAR 0050 
51

 
Botswana University of Agriculture and Natural 
Resources  

PAR 0051
 

52 Public Enterprises Evaluation and Privatisation Agency  PAR 0052 

53 Architects Registration Council  PAR 0053 

54 Botswana Unified Revenue Service  PAR 0054 

55 Statistics Botswana  PAR 0055 

56 Botswana Innovation Hub  PAR 0056 
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND 
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are required to maintain proper books of accounts and records of accounts and are 
responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information 
included in this report.  It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the 
state of affairs of Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority (“Authority’’) as at the end of the 
financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity 
with the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 and International Financial Reporting Standards. The 
independent auditors are responsible for auditing and reporting on the Authority’s financial 
statements and their report is presented on page 91 to 93.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial 
control established by the Directors and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong 
control environment.  To enable the Directors to meet these responsibilities, the Directors set standards 
for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner.  The standards 
include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective 
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.  
These controls are monitored throughout by the Directors and all employees are required to maintain 
highest ethical standards in ensuring that the Authority’s business is conducted in a manner that, in all 
reasonable circumstances, is above reproach.  The focus of risk management in the Authority is on 
identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Authority.  While 
operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Directors endeavour to minimise it by ensuring that 
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by Management, 
that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be 
relied on for the preparation of the financial statements.  However, any system of internal financial 
control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or 
loss.

The Directors have reviewed the Authority’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2019 and, 
in the light of this review and the current financial position, are satisfied that the Authority has, or has 
access to, adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The financial statements set out on Pages 94 to 117, which have been prepared on the going concern 
basis, were approved by the Directors on 28 th March 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director ____________________________ Director _____________________ 
Date  28 th March 2019  Date  28 th March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BOTSWANA ACCOUNTANCY OVERSIGHT AUTHORITY

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority ("BAOA") set 
out on pages 94 to 117, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, 
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Authority as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit 
matters to communicate in our audit opinion.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Botswana, and 
we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Pursuant to Section 64(5) of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010 we report on the following:

a) We have received all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge  
 and belief, were necessary for the performance of our duties;

b) The accounts and related records of the Authority have been properly kept; 

c) The Authority has complied with all the financial provisions of the Act with which it is the duty of  
 the Authority to comply with; and

d) The statement of accounts prepared by the Authority was prepared on a basis consistent with  
 that of the preceding year and represents a true and fair view of the transactions and financial  
 affairs of the Authority.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other Information 

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual 
Report, Directors’ Responsibility Statement and Approval of the Financial Statements. The other 
information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date 
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
 
Responsibilities of the Directors 

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Authority or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
 to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain  
 audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
 not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from  
 error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the  
 override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit   
 procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an  
 opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of   
 accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of   
 accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists  
 related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to  
 continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required  
 to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,  
 if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the  
 audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or  
 conditions may cause the Authority's to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including  
 the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and  
 events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
 
We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche
Certified Auditors of Public Interest Entities         Gaborone
Practicing Member:  C V Ramatlapeng (CAP 008 2019)                   28 May 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2018

Figures in Pula               Note(s)   2018        2017         

ASSETS

Non-current assests
Plant, equipment and leasedhold improvements   3          2,748,600  2,920,300
Intangible assets       4             132,000       50,100
                 2,880,600  2,970,400

Current assets
Trade and other receivables       5          1,395,300  2,118,900 
Cash and cash equivalents      6          4,565,400  7,547,200
                 5,960,700  9,666,100

Total assets                8,841,300            12,636,500

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 

RESERVES 
Retained earnings               4,906,700  4,614,700

LIABILITIES
 
Non-current Liabilities  
Deferred lease liability                 281,300       125,400

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable       7          2,709,300  7,392,100
Deferred Income       8             944,000     504,300
                 3,653,300  7,896,400

Total reserves and liabilities              8,841,300            12,636,500 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Figu res in Pula               Note (s)   2018        2017         

Inco me

Gov ernment subv ent ion rece ived 
for recurrent ex pen di ture       17        14,081,300  13,300,000

Revenue e a rned  from service s     11          4,784,600    4,492,800

Other income         12               28,200           8,900

               18,894,100  17,801,700

Op erati ng ex pen ses        13      (18,631,500)           (18,452,500) 

Ope rating  surplu s/( de fic it) be fore  interest                262,600    (650,800)

Intere st income        14               29,400      177,200

Surplu s/( de fic it) for the  yea r                 292,000                (473,600)

Other comhen sive income                       -          -           

Total co mpr ehen sive  inco me /(l oss) for the  yea r             292,000    (473,600)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
For the year ended 31 December 2018

                  Retai ned            Total
Figu res in Pula                 Earning s     Reserve s    

Balance  a t 01 Janua ry 2017     5,088,300   5,088,300

Total  com prehen sive loss for the year   (473,600)   (473,600)

Balance  a t 31 Dece mbe r 2017    4,614,700   4,614,700

Total  com prehen sive income for the year      292,000      292,000

Balance  a t 31 December 2018     4,906,700   4,906,700
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in Pula                 Note(s) 2018        2017         

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash flows used in operating activities      15         (2,221,300) 2,180,700
Interest income        14                29,400    177,200
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activites                 (2,191,900)           2,357,900

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of plant, equipment & leasehold improvements    3            (639,600)         (2,093,300)
Purchase of intangible assets       4            (153,900)    (62,900)
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets                      3,600                   -       
Net cash used in investing activities                (789,900)        (2,156,200)

Changes in cash and equivalents             (2,981,800)              201,700
Cash  and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                         7,547,200           7,345,500
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    6                   4,565,400          7,547,200

Page 97 0f 117



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2018

1.  PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and 
incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Botswana Pula, the 
functional and reporting currency of the Authority.

1.1 NATURE OF THE BUSINESS

The principal objective of the Authority is to provide oversight to the accounting and auditing 
profession and promote the standard, quality and credibility of providing financial and non-financial 
information by entities.  Its functions include standards setting, financial reporting, corporate 
governance and audit practice reviews, enforcement of compliance and oversight over the 
education and training of professional accountants in Botswana. The Authority commenced 
operations in 2012.

1.2 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATING UNCERTAINTY

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the financial statements and related 
disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the 
formation of estimates.  Actual results in the future may differ from these estimates which may be 
material to the financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Estimation of impairment of financial assets
The Authority assesses its financial assets for impairment at the end of each reporting period.  In 
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive 
income, the Authority uses a simplified expected credit loss model as per the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards 9 (IFRS 9). This model is based on the Authority’s historical 
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable.

Estimation of impairment of non-financial assets
The Authority assesses its assets for impairment at the end of each reporting period.  In determining 
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, the 
Authority makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease 
in the estimated future cash flows from an asset.
 
Estimation of remaining useful lives and residual values of items of plant and equipment  
The useful lives of assets are estimated based on the pattern of use, industry practice and 
technological advances on the market. These estimates are used in determining the depreciation 
charge for the year.

The estimation of residual values is affected by the market price of similar used items, technological 
advances, pattern of use and the industry practice.  These estimates have an impact on the level of 
depreciation charged to the statement of comprehensive income and the carrying values of items of 
plant, equipment and leasehold improvements in the statement of financial position.

1.3 PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

The cost of an item of plant, equipment and leasehold improvements is recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Authority;  
 and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Plant, equipment and leasehold improvements is initially measured at cost.
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1.3 PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS (CONTINUED)
 
Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of plant, equipment and 
leasehold improvements and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of. If a replacement 
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of plant, equipment and leasehold 
improvements, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are 
incurred.

Plant, equipment and leasehold improvements are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any impairment losses.

Plant, equipment and leasehold improvements are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their 
expected useful lives to their estimated residual values.
 
The useful lives of items of plant, equipment and leasehold improvements have been assessed as 
follows:

Item     Average useful life
Motor vehicles    6 years
Computer equipment   5 to 6 years
Office equipment   2 ½ to 6 years
Furniture and fittings   10 years
Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining lease term 
 
The residual value and useful life of each category of asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period.  If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in 
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of plant, equipment and leasehold 
improvements is included in the statement of comprehensive income when the item is derecognised.  
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of plant, equipment and leasehold 
improvements is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the 
carrying amount of the item.

1.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 
Item     Average useful life
Intangible assets   2 years

Intangible assets comprise of computer software.
 
Costs that are directly attributable to the installation of identifiable computer software controlled by the 
Authority, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are 
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria is met;

• it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use; 
• management intends to complete the software and use or sell it;
• there is an ability to use or sell the software;
• it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits;
• adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use  
 or sell the software are available; and
• the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably 
 measured.
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1.4  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Computer software costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a 
straight-line basis which does not exceed two years and are tested for impairment whenever there is 
indication of impairment. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the income 
statement in the expense category.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

1.5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Classification  

The Authority classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
• Financial assets at amortised cost; and
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/
incurred and takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.
 
The Authority classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a 
financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the instrument.

Subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at amortised cost which comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash 
equivalents are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
provision for impairment.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities which comprise accounts payable are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, with interest expenses recognised on an effective yield basis

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the Authority assesses all financial assets to determine whether there is 
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as 
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires the 
Authority to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each 
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. In other 
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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1.5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Indicators for changes in credit risk are, but not limited to; Amounts due to the Authority for more than 
60 days, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, significant financial difficulties of the debtor 
and any other negative information about the financials of the debtor.

When a receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for receivables. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the statement of
comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.  These are initially recorded at fair value, subsequently measured 
at amortised cost, which generally approximates fair value.

1.6 TAXATION

The Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority is an entity wholly owned by the Botswana 
Government.  It is exempt from income tax under Part 1 paragraph (ii) of the Second Schedule of the 
Income Tax Act Cap 52:01.

1.7 LEASES

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are 
recognised as an operating lease liability. This liability is not discounted. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.8 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The Authority assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired.  If any such indication exists, the Authority estimates the recoverable amount of the 
asset.  If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.  If 
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount.  That reduction is an impairment loss.

The Authority assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for assets may no longer exist or may have decreased.  If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss is limited to 
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for 
the asset in prior periods.
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1.8 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation is recognised 
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

1.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, i.e. those payable within 12 months after the service is 
rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as 
medical care, are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

Post-employment benefits

Contract staff members of the Authority are entitled to gratuities on leaving the employment of the 
Authority or at the end of their contracts at the rates, and in accordance with the terms specified, in 
their contracts of employment.

An accrual is raised in respect of gratuity owed as the employee renders services to the Authority.

1.10 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue earned from services

The Authority renders services to Certified Auditors, Certified Firms of Auditors, Professional Accounting 
Organisations and Public Interest Entities (PIEs).  Revenue earned from such services is measured at the 
value of the transaction price as stipulated in the Financial Reporting (Public Interest Entities) 
Regulations, 2016 (Schedule of fees). The Authority recognises revenue when the performance 
obligation is satisfied. The performance obligation has been identified as registration by PIEs in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Act, 2010.

Deferred Income

Income relating to future periods is credited to a deferred income account and released to the income 
statement in the relevant period. This entails mostly subscription fees paid in advance.

Interest revenue

Interest income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying 
amount.

1.11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority maintains a very close relationship with the Government of Botswana.  The Government 
of Botswana provides significant income to the Authority through operational subventions.

1.12 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, 
and all attached conditions will be compiled with. When the grant relates to an expense item it is 
recognised as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs 
that it is intended to compensate. Government grants receivable as compensation for expenses or 
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving the Authority immediate financial support with no 
further related costs are recognised as income in the period in which they become receivable.
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2 (a) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
 INTERPRETATIONS 
 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the 
following new or revised Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and 
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

New/Revised International Reporting Standards

The Authority has applied the following standards and amendements for the first time for its annual 
reporting period commencing 1 January 2018:

 • IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;and
 • IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The Authority made changes to its accounting policies following implementation of the above 
standards. The impact assessment of the above standards does not show a significant impact in prior 
and current year.

IFRS 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A finalised version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements for financial instruments, replacing 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard contains requirements in the 
following areas:

• Classification and measurement  - Financial assets are classified by reference to the 
 business model within which they are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The  
 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income category’  
 for certain debt instruments. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar manner to under IAS  
 39, however there are differences in the requirements applying to the measurement of an  
 entity’s own credit risk.

• Impairment - The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an ‘expected credit loss’ model for the  
 measurement of the impairment of financial assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit  
 event to have occurred before a credit loss is recognised.

• Hedge accounting - Introduces a new hedge accounting model that is designed to be   
 more closely aligned with how entities undertake risk management activities when hedging 
 financial and non-financial risk exposures.

• Derecognition -  The requirements for the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities are  
 carried forward from IAS 39.

IMPACT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Classification and Measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of IFRS 9), the Authority’s Management assessed 
which business models apply to the financial assets held by the Authority and has classified its financial 
instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories as follows:  
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2 (a) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
 INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)

IMPACT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

ii)  Impairment of Trade Receivables

The Authority applies a simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. This model is based on the Authority’s historical 
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable.

The table below reflects the expected credit loss (ECL) calculation for the period ended 31st 
December 2018. 

The Authority applies 100% default rates to a group of Trade Receivables assessed to be
 individually impaired. Individually impaired accounts are followed up through various collection 
strategies.

The same default rates were applied to the 2017 Trade Receivables balance and the impact was 
assessed to be insignificant.

IFRS 15 – REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 

This standard aims to be a single, comprehensive revenue recognition model for all contracts with 
customers to achieve greater consistency in the recognition and presentation of revenue. Revenue is 
recognised based on the satisfaction of performance obligations, which occurs when control of 
goods and services transfer to a customer.

IMPACT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

(I) Recognition and Measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of IFRS 15), the Authority’s management assessed 
the recognition criteria of the Standard and applied to all contracts with customers. The contracts 
with customers are as per the provisions of the Financial Reporting Act, 2010.

Classification  Default Rates  ECL (P) 
0-60 days  6%              22,900  
 
Over 60 days
(Individually Impaired) 

 
100%

 
968,100 

 

     991,000  

Financial Asset Measurement  Business Model  

1. Cash and cash equivalents  

 

Amortised Cost  

 

Collect Contract
Cashflows

Collect Contract
Cashflows

Collect Contract
Cashflows

 

 2. Trade receivables

 

 

Amortised Cost

 

 
 

 

3. Staff loans Amortised Cost

There was no change to the classification and the measurement of the financial assets.
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Standard  Effective
Date  

Objective  Nature of Change  

IFRS16 
Leases

 01/01/2019  

 

2 (b) NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
 IN ISSUE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
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2 (a)  ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
 INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)

(I) Recognition and Measurement (continued) 

The following five step recognition criteria has been applied;
1. Identify the contracts with customers;
2. Identify the performance obligation in the contract;
3. Determine the transaction price;
4. Allocate transaction price to performance obligation; and
5. Recognise revenue when the entity satisfies performance obligation.

Section 22 of the Financial Reporting Act,2010 identifies the contract with customers.

There was no financial adjustment made to the financial statements relating to the 
implementation of IFRS 15.

(II) Disclosures

Contracts with Customers have been disclosed as per note 11 of the financial statements.
Revenue from all contracts is satisfied at a point in time, all registered Public Interest Entities are 
obliged to pay at the point of registration.
 

This standard replaces the 
current guidance in IAS 17 and is 
a far reaching change in 
accounting by lessees in 
particular.
   
Under IAS 17, lessees were 
required to make a distinction 
between a finance lease (on 
balance sheet) and an 
operating lease (off balance 
sheet). IFRS 16 now requires 
lessees to recognise a lease 
liability reflecting future lease 
payments and a ‘right-of-use 
asset’ for virtually all lease 
contracts. The IASB has included 
an optional exemption for 
certain short-term leases and 
leases of low-value assets; 
however, this exemption can 
only be applied by lessees.  

For lessors, the accounting stays 
almost the same. However, as 
the IASB has updated the 
guidance on the definition of a 
lease (as well as the guidance 
on the combination and 
separation of contracts),

IFRS 16 establishes 
principles for the 
recognition, 
measurement, 
presentation and 
disclosure of leases, with 
the objective ofensuring 
that lesseesand lessors 
provide relevant 
information that 
faithfully represents 
those transactions.  



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Standard Effective 
Date 

Objective  Nature of Change  

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

IFRS 17  
Insurance 
Contracts 

01/01/2020

 

To achieve the goal
of a consistent, 
principle-based 
accounting or
insurance contracts  

IFRIC 22,
‘Foreign 
currency 
transactions 
and advance 
consideration’  

 

01/01/2018

 

 
 

2 (b)  NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
 IN ISSUE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)
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lessors will also be affected by 
the new standard.

At the very least, the new 
accounting model for lessees is 
expected to impact 
negotiations between lessors 
and lessees. Under IFRS 16, a 
contract is, or contains, a lease 
if the contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for 
consideration.       

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17, 
‘Leases’, IFRIC 4, ‘Determining 
whether an Arrangement 
contains a Lease’, SIC 15, 
‘Operating Leases-Incentives’ 
and SIC 27, ‘Evaluating the 
Substance of Transactions 
Involving the Legal Form of a 
Lease’.  

The new Standard establishes 
the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure 
of insurance contracts and 
supersedes IFRS 4 
Insurance Contracts.  

This IFRIC addresses foreign
currency transactions or parts 
of transactions where there 
is consideration that is 
denominated or priced in a 
foreign currency. The 
interpretation provides 
guidance for when a single 
payment/receipt is made as 
well as for situations where 
multiple payment/receipts 
are made. The guidance 
aims to reduce diversity 
in practice.  



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2 (b)  NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
 IN ISSUE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

IFRS 16 – Leases Impact Assessment

As at the reporting date, the Authority expects to recognise the following:

(i) The right to use the asset and a lease liability initially measured at the present value of future  
 lease payments;

(ii) Depreciation of right to use the asset and interest on lease liabilities; and

(i) Separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing  
 activities) and interest (presented within operating activities) in the cashflow statement.

The lease will be depreciated over the remaining period until May 2022. At the time of the 
assessment the Authority had no intention of renewing the lease.

The right to use the asset will be assessed for impairment under IAS 16.

The Authority will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Authority 
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the 
year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets for property leases will be measured on transition as if the 
new rules had always been applied. All other right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount of the 
lease liability on adoption.

IFRS 17- Insurance Contracts

The Authority does not anticipate that the application of the standard in the future will have an impact 
on the Authority’s financial statements.

IFRIC 22- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations.

The Authority does not anticipate that the application of the standard in the future will have an impact 
on the Authority’s financial statements.
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3. PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

       Motor          Computer         Office          Furniture &      Leasehold
Figures in pula              Vehicles       Equipment      Equipment          Fittings       Improvements         Total        

2018

Cost
At 1 January 2018          539,200            1,559,900       519,900       1,292,300         1,881,700        5,793,000
Additions          -        50,900       297,500           204,300            86,900           639,600
Disposals          -           -            (12,500)     -   -       (12,500)
At 31 December 2018    539,200           1,610,800       804,900        1,496,600         1,968,600       6,420,100  

Depreciation
At 1 January 2018          369,200            1,332,000       363,900          732,400              75,200        2,872,700
Charge of the year     68,700     110,200       100,400           141,500          386,700           807,500
Disposals          -           -             (8,700)     -   -         (8,700)
At 31 December 2018    437,900           1,442,200       455,600           873,900            461,900       3,671,500  

Carrying Value

At 31 December 2018    101,300              168,600       349,300           622,700        1,506,700       2,748,600  

2017

Cost
At 1 January 2017          539,200            1,481,600       386,600       1,292,300            729,000        4,428,700
Additions          -        78,300       133,300                  -       1,881,700        2,093,300
Disposal/write off         -           -                 -     -       (729,000)     (729,000)
At 31 December 2017    539,200           1,559,900       519,900        1,292,300         1,881,700       5,793,000  

Depreciation
At 1 January 2017          279,300            1,060,600       271,600          603,200            567,700        2,782,400
Charge of the year     89,900     271,400         92,300           129,200          196,200           779,000
Disposals          -           -                  -     -        (688,700)     (688,700)
At 31 December 2017    369,200           1,332,000       363,900           732,400             75,200       2,872,700  

Carrying Value

At 31 December 2017    170,000              227,900       156,000           559,900        1,806,500       2,920,300  
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3. PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 (a) Changes in accounting estimates – useful lives and residual values

The Authority reviewed the useful lives and residual values of its plant, equipment and leasehold 
improvements.  

The impact of the review resulted in no change in the residual values. The changes in the useful lives 
were as follows:

The effect of the review was a reduction in the depreciation in the current financial statements as 
follows;

3 (b) Estimation of impairment of assets

During the year, the Authority reviewed its plant, equipment and leasehold improvements for 
impairment. There was no impairment arising from the review. 

 AVERAGE USEFUL LIVES (YEARS) 

ASSET CLASS 2017  2018  

Motor Vehicles  6 6

Computer Equipment  4 5 - 6 

Office Equipment  4 6 

Office Equipment-Cellphones/IPADs 

 

- 2.5  

Furniture and fittings

 
10

 
10

 
Leasehold improvements

 
5
 

5
 

Class  Effect (P)  

  Computer Equipment  18,700  

Office Equipment  15,900  

TOTAL  34,600  
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Figures in Pula                 2018        2017          

4.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 
 
 COST
 
 At 1 January 2018      62,900           -
 Additions                153,900       62,900

 At 31 December 2018               216,800       62,900

 Amortisation
 
 At 1 January 2018      12,800           -
 Charge of the year                   72,000        12,800

 At 31 December 2018                 84,800       12,800

 Carrying value
 
 At 31 December 2018               132,000       50,100

5.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

 Gross trade receivables            1,328,300  1,064,900
 Expected credit Loss              ( 991,000)                       -     
 Net trade receivables                337,300  1,064,900
 Deposits                  316,900      316,900
 Prepayments                           29,400                   25,400     
 Staff loans                 708,700     461,600
 Other receivables                     3,000     250,000
                1,395,300  2,118,900

6.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Petty cash                     4,000         2,800
 Current and call accounts            2,654,800              1,158,500
 Gratuity account (Restricted funds)            1,906,600   6,385,900
                        4,565,400              7,547,200

7.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

 Employee costs accruals            2,215,300              6,931,400
 Audit fee accrual                        122,000                   98,100
 Other payables                                  372,000       362,600
                        2,709,300              7,392,100
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Figures in Pula                 2018        2017          

8.  DEFERRED INCOME

 Deferred Income (annual subscriptions)            894,000     504,300
 Other Deferred Income                50,000             -    
                  944,000     504,300

9.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

 The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the items below:

 Financial Assets at amortised cost

 Trade and other receivables             1,049,000              1,776,600

 Bank balances                            4,565,400              7,547,200
 

10.  FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

 The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line item below:

 Financial Liabilities at Amortised cost

 Accounts payable                 494,000                 460,700

11.  REVENUE EARNED FROM SERVICES

 Certified auditors for Public Interest Entities (PIEs)            302,000                 293,000
 Audit firms for Public Interest Entities (PIEs)           25,000                   26,000
 Parastatals                         617,400                  667,600
 Professional accountancy bodies     32,900                   29,600
 Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants
 audit reviews                  145,000                 135,000
 PIEs Registered under section 22(a)              968,800                  861,300
 PIEs Regulated by Bank of Botswana Section 22(b)            579,000                 708,200
 PIEs Regulated by Non-Bank Financial Institutions-
 Regulatory Authority sections 22(c)           1,285,500                 999,100
 PIEs Registered under section 22(d)              829,000                 773,000
                        4,784,600              4,492,800
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Figures in Pula                 2018        2017          

12.  OTHER INCOME

 Tendering receipts                                 -         4,200
 Trailer hire recoveries                               2,500               -    
 Register book of PIEs                      -            200
 Insurance received             25,700         4,500
                    28,200         8,900

13.  OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) BEFORE INTEREST

 Operating surplus/(deficit) before interest for the year is states after accounting fo the   
 following:

 Audit fees                        122,500                   98,100
 Amortisation on intangible assests                    72,000                    12,800
 Depreciation on plant, equipements and leasehold
 improvements                                      807,500     779,000
 Employee costs                      11,212,600            12,864,100
 Director’s fees                                 241,200     147,600
 Rental charge                     1,901,600              1,811,200
 Other expenses                    4,274,100   2,739,700
              18,631,500           18,452,500
 

14.  INTEREST INCOME

 Bank                     16,700                 128,800
 Staff loans                   12,700                   48,400
                             29,400                 177,200
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in Pula                 2018        2017          

15.  NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 Suplus/(Deficit) for the year                         292,000               (473,600)
 
 Adjustments for:

 Amortisation of Intangible assests     72,000                   12,800
 Depreciation on plant, equipment and leasehold-
 improvements                        807,500      779,000
 Leasehold improvements written off          -                   40,300
 Interest income                       (29,400)   (177,200)
 Loss on disposal of PPE                             200            -

 Changes in working capital

 Trade and other receivables               723,600               (559,300)
 Accounts payable                  (4,243,100)  2,604,500
 Deferred lease liabilities                      155,900      (45,800)
                   (2,221,300)              2,180,700
    
16.  OPERATING LEASE

 Cancellable operating lease rentals payable as follows:

 Lease than one year                    1,850,500              1,737,300
 Between one year and five years                4,928,000               6,927,500

 Total actual future cash flows payable to lessor          6,778,500  8,664,800

 Straight lining already accrued in the Statement of-
 Financial Position                     (281,300)                (125,400)

 Future exepenses through the statement of- 
 Comprehensive Income                   6,497,200             8,539,400
 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Authority for certain 
buildings it rents for use as offices.  Leases are negotiated for an average term of five (5) years.  Lease 
payments are increased every year to reflect market rentals.  No contingent rent is payable.

The operating lease in place can be terminated after the first three (3) years having lapsed by giving 
three (3) calendar months written notice of the intention to terminate without penalty. The Authority 
has no intention to exercise this option.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will be unable to meet its payments obligations when they 
fall due.  The source of the Authority’s cash resources is mainly from the Government annual 
subvention and registration and subscription fees.  Any expenditures and commitments are, 
therefore, restricted to the level of subvention and other income received. Continuous monitoring 
through cash flow forecasts and variance analysis is in place to ensure that expenditure does not 
exceed the Authority’s cash resources.

Given below is the Authority’s net liquidity gap derived from comparing current assets with current 
liabilities. The liquidity gap as at 31 December 2018 amounting to P3,222,000 (2017: P2,248,600) 
shows a positive liquidity position.

The maximum liquidity exposure as at 31 December 2018 amounting to P2,709,300 (2017: P7,392,100) 
represents the total liabilities due within 12 months. 
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17. RELATED PARTIES

All related party transactions are entered into at arm’s length in the ordinary course of business.  The 
transactions with key management personnel are staff benefits provided for under the General 
Conditions of Service of the Authority and their contracts of employment.

Figures in Pula                     2018              2017          

Related party transactions

Transactions with the Government and Parastatals  

Government of the Republic of Botswana

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development (Income)           14,081,300         13,300,300

Parastatals (Income)                           617,400              667,600

Parastatals (Receivables)                                 174,000   54,000

Transactions with Executive Management and Directors

Executive Management remuneration-                2,220,200           3,718,000
(Expenses including gratuity paid)
Executive Management loans-                      217,100             131,800
(Receivables)
Post-employment benefits-                           164,000          1,978,000
(Gratuity Payable)
Directors’ fees expense                                 241,200            147,600



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below presents net liquidity position of the Authority per maturity category. It reflects the 
availability of the Authority’s assets to meet pressing or due obligations at any point in time.

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows due within 12 months and are 
equal to their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As at 31 Dec 2018  Up to 1 Month  1-12 months  Over 12 months  Total 

Financial Assets      

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents  

2,658,800  -            1,906,600  4,565,400  

Staff Loans  28,700  344,200  335,800  708,700  

Trade Receivables  801,200  527,100  - 1,328,300  

Expected Credit 

Loss 

          (542,000)           (449,000)  - (991,000)  

Others  3,000  - 316,900  319,900  

Financial Liabilities      

Accounts Payable  494,000  - 2,215,300  2,709,300  

Net Liquidity Gap  2,455,700  422,300  344,000  3,222,000  

     

As at 31 Dec 2017  Up to 1 Month  1-12 months  Over 12 months  Total 

Financial Assets      

Cash and Cash  

Equivalents  

7,547,200  - - 7,547,200  

Staff Loans  76,900  327,200  57,500  461,600  

Trade Receivables  837,100  227,800  - 1,064,900  

Others  250,100   316,900  567,000  

Financial Liabilities      

Accounts Payable  460,700  5,973,300  958,100  7,392,100  

Net Liquidity Gap  8,250,600  (5,418,300)  (583,700)  2,248,600  

Figures in Pula                                                                                          
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Summary of net Liquidity Gap

Figures in Pula                 2018        2017          

Trade and Other Receivables                        1,365,900    2,093,500
Cash and Cash equivalents               4,565,400    7,547,200   

Total liquid assets                           5,931,300    9,640,700

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable                2,709,300    7,392,100

Net liquidity gap                           3,222,000    2,248,600

Interest rate risk

The Authority invests practically all its surplus funds in interest- earning call accounts and bank deposit 
accounts in order to discharge its liabilities as they fall due. The average interest rate on the overnight 
bank deposits is 0.025% (2017: 0.025%). 

A 0.5% increase in interest rates would result in an increase in the surplus for the year of P13,200 (2017: 
P5,800), while a decrease in interest rates by a similar margin would result in an equal and opposite 
effect on the surplus for the year. 0.5% is considered the most likely movement in interest rates based on 
the past interest rate adjustments announced by Bank of Botswana.

Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in 
financial loss to the Authority.

Credit risk relates mainly to cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.  The 
Authority only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing. Therefore, credit risk  on 
the bank balance is minimal.

The following summarises the maximum exposures to credit risk without taking into account collateral 
held, in respect of which none is received on any of the financial assets.

Figures in Pula                 2018        2017          

Cash at bank                           4,565,400    7,547,200

Accounts receivable                1,365,900    2,093,500   

Total exposure to credit risk                          5,931,300    9,640,700

Credit Quality of Trade Receivables, Staff Loans and Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The following tables reflect the credit quality of Trade receivables, staff loans and cash and cash 
equivalents as at the 31st December 2018 and comparative information. Neither past due nor impaired 
relates to category of assets that are still in the current stage, Past due but not individually impaired 
relates to those that are outstanding for more than 30 days, but they do not show 
indicators of increased credit risk at individual level. Individually impaired are those that were 
identified individually to have significant increase in credit risk and an expected credit loss equal to 
their carrying amount is recorded.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit Quality of Trade Receivables, Staff Loans and Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 

19.        CONTINGENT LIABILITY
              
The Authority has received a claim from a former Employee for alleged unfair dismissal and 
unlawful failure to renew the contract. The Authority’s Legal Advisors are of the opinion that the 
prospects of the claim succeeding are unlikely. However, they estimated that the maximum 
probable loss is P180,000. The Authority has already paid P90,000 and provided for a further P90,000 in 
the current year.

20. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

No events have occurred between the statement of financial position date and the date of the 
approval of the financial statements, which would materially affect the financial statements.

Figures in Pula                                                                                          

Trade 
Receivables

Staff Loans 
and Cash 
and Cash 

Equivalents

Total 
Credit 

Exposure

Neither past due nor impaired        381,200   5,270,100 5,651,300 

Past due but not individually impaired          78,100               -   78,100      
Individually impaired        869,000               -   869,000    
Gross     1,328,300   5,270,100 6,598,400 
Less: Expected Credit Losses      (991,000)               -       (991,000)

Net        337,300   5,270,100   5,607,400 

2018

Figures in Pula                                                                                          2017

Trade 
Receivables

Staff Loans 
and Cash 
and Cash 

Equivalents

Total 
Credit 

Exposure

Neither past due nor impaired        837,200   8,006,000 8,843,200 

Past due but not individually impaired        227,700                -   227,700    

Individually impaired                  -                  -        -   

Gross     1,064,900   8,006,000   9,070,900 

Less: Expected Credit Losses                  -                  -          - 

Net     1,064,900   8,006,000   9,070,900 
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